

# **Collective Bargaining Agreement**

between the

WINTON WOODS TEACHERS' ASSOCIATION

An affiliate of the

**OHIO EDUCATION ASSOCIATION** 

and the

NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

and the

WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

Hamilton County, Ohio

WINTON WOODS
CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Ensuring all students achieve their highest potential

Effective July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

PREAMBLE	**************				
ARTICLE I:	RECOGNITION				
ARTICLE II:	CHECKOFF OF ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP DUES				
ARTICLE III:		'S OF THE BOARD AND ASSOCIATION			
	3.01	BOARD MANAGEMENT RECOGNITION			
	3.02	BOARD MANAGEMENT RIGHTS			
	3.03	ASSOCIATION BUSINESS AND ACTIVITY			
	3.04	ASSOCIATION LEAVE OF ABSENCE			
	3.05	BOARD MEETINGS			
	3.06	PERSONNEL DIRECTORY			
	3.07	COPIES OF PUBLIC INFORMATION			
	3.08	ASSOCIATION USE OF SCHOOL BUILDINGS			
	3.09	DISSEMINATION OF ASSOCIATION INFORMATION			
ARTICLE IV:	NO W	ORK STOPPAGES	8		
ARTICLE V:	GRIEV	ANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE			
ARTICLE VI:	COMM	IITTEES	13		
	6.01	JOINT TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE			
	6.02	BOARD-ASSOCIATION COMMITTEE	1.		
	6.03	BUILDING ADVISORY COMMITTEES			
	6.04	EMPLOYEE SERVICE ON BOARD COMMITTEES			
	6.05	LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (LPDC)	1:		
	6.06	MASTER/LEAD TEACHER PROGRAM			
ARTICLE VII:	INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS				
	7.01	GENERAL	19		
	7.02	INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE LIMITED CONTRACTS			
	7.03	INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE CONTINUING CONTRACTS			
	7.04	INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE SUPPLEMENTAL LIMITED CONTRACTS			
	7.05	SUSPENSION/TERMINATION OF INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE CONTRACTS			
	7.06	EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE			
	7.07	NONRENEWAL OF INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE LIMITED CONTRACTS			
	7.08	"HIGHLY QUALIFIED" REQUIREMENTS	2.		
ARTICLE VIII:					
	8.01	EMPLOYEE JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION			
	8.02	MENTOR TEACHER PROGRAM	30		
ARTICLE IX:	REDUCTION IN FORCE				
	9.17	SUBCONTRACTING	40		
ARTICLE X:	WORKING CONDITIONS				
	10.01	CONTRACT YEAR			
	10.02	WORK WEEK AND WORKDAYS			
	10.03	PLANNING PERIODS			
	10.04	COMPLAINTS ABOUT EMPLOYEES			
	10.05	SCHOOL CALENDAR	4		

	10.06	PERSONNEL FILES	48	
	10.07	EXISTING PERMANENT VACANCIES AND NEWLY ESTABLISHED POSITIONS		
	10.08	SAFETY AND HEALTH		
	10.09	TEACHER EDUCATION STUDENTS		
	10.10	STUDENT HEALTH RECORDS		
	10.11	ASSIGNMENTS		
	10.12	SUMMER SCHOOL JOB POSITIONS		
	10.13	CLASS SIZE		
	10.14	STUDENTS IDENTIFIED WITH DISABILITIES		
	10.15	STUDENT DISCIPLINE		
	10.16	DEPARTMENT FACILITATOR (7-12)		
ARTICLE XI:	LEAVES OF ABSENCE5			
	11.01	FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT	57	
	11.02	PAID AND UNPAID PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE		
	11.03	PAID SICK LEAVE		
	11.04	SICK LEAVE BANK		
	11.05	PAID JURY DUTY AND SUBPOENAED WITNESS DUTY LEAVE		
	11.06	PAID PROFESSIONAL LEAVE		
	11.07	PAID AND UNPAID MILITARY DUTY LEAVE		
	11.08	UNPAID CHILD CARE LEAVE		
	11.09	UNPAID SABBATICAL LEAVE		
	11.10	VOLUNTARY AND INVOLUNTARY UNPAID MEDICAL LEAVE	70	
	11.11	ASSAULT LEAVE		
	11.12	RIGHTS UPON RETURNING FROM LEAVE		
	11.13	ABSENCE FROM WORK WITHOUT APPROVAL OF LEAVE AND FAILURE TO		
		RETURN FROM LEAVE	73	
ARTICLE XII:	COMP	PENSATION	74	
	12.01	SALARY NOTICES		
	12.02	BASE SALARY	74	
	12.03	SUPPLEMENTAL LIMITED CONTRACT PAY	76	
	12.04	EXTENDED SERVICE PAY	78	
	12.05	SUMMER SCHOOL, HOME INSTRUCTION, CURRICULUM AND TEXTBOOK	7.0	
	12.00	COMMITTEENATIONAL BOARD CERTIFICATION STIPEND/NEW TECH BADGING		
	12.06			
	12.07	EDUCATION OPTIONS PROCEDURE	/9	
ARTICLE XIII:	FRING	GE BENEFITS	80	
	13.01	LIFE INSURANCE	80	
	13.02	DENTAL, VISION AND MEDICAL PLANS		
	13.03	VISION CARE		
	13.04	SEVERANCE PAY		
	13.05	MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT	83	
	13.06	BOARD PICKUP OF EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS TO STATE TEACHERS'		
		RETIREMENT SYSTEM		
	13.07	LIABILITY OF BOARD		
	13.08	TUITION REIMBURSEMENT		
	13.09	<i>TAX SHELTER</i> — 125 <i>PLAN</i>	85	

ARTICLE XIV:		PAY PERIODS		86	
				87	
		14.08	ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS		
ARTICLE XVI: ARTICLE XVII:		EMPLOYEE MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS		89	
		ALTE	ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION PROGRAM (AEP)		
		SEVERABILITY			
ARTICLE XVIII:		NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE		92	
		18.01	PROCEDURE	92	
		18.02	GOOD FAITH, EXCHANGE OF FACTS AND VIEWS	92	
		18.03	SCOPE OF BARGAINING	92	
		18.04	AGREEMENT		
		18.05	DISPUTE SETTLEMENT PROCEDURE	93	
		18.06	IN-TERM CONTRACT BARGAINING		
ARTI	CLE XIX:	CONC	CLUSION	94	
		19.01	DURATION		
		19.02	COMPLETE AGREEMENT	94	
		SIGNA	ATURE PAGE		
			APPENDICES:		
A			M		
В			OR UNPAID CHILD CARE LEAVE		
-			OR PAID PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE DAYS		
D			OR PAID SICK LEAVE		
E-1			ERS' SALARY SCHEDULE		
E-2			RS' SALARY SCHEDULE		
F-1	SUPPLEM	LENTAL	POSITIONSSALARY INDEX AND SCHEDULE	103	
F-2					
G H			ROFESSIONAL LEAVEEIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES FOR PROFESSIONAL LEAVE		
н I			R REIMBURSEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL LEAVER		
J			OR ASSAULT LEAVE		
K	DEOLIEST	TION FC	AID JURY DUTY AND SUBPOENAED WITNESS DUTY LEAVE	112	
L			G TIME OUTSIDE THE WORKDAY (UNCOMPENSATED)		
M	TUITION	REIMBU	JRSEMENT APPLICATION AND COMPLETED COURSEWORK		
	CONFIRM	IATION	T. F. CDEDNE VEDWICK TWO V. DODAY	118	
N			JLE CREDIT VERIFICATION FORM		
0			LASSROOM OBSERVATIONS BY NON-EDUCATIONAL PERSONNEL		
P			RT FORM NTRACT APPLICATION		
Q			SORY COMMITTEE CONCERN FORM		
R S					
T	SUPPLEMENTAL POSITION RE-EVALUATION REQUEST FORM				
U			EPARATION HOURS LOG		
V			AINT FORM		
W			TH MEASURES		
X			CAL PLANS		

## **PREAMBLE**

This Collective Bargaining Agreement is made and entered into by and between the Winton Woods City School District Board of Education (hereinafter referred to as the "Board"), and the Winton Woods Teachers' Association, affiliated with the Southwestern Ohio Education Association, the Ohio Education Association and the National Education Association (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Association").

# ARTICLE I: RECOGNITION

- 1.01 The Board recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all employees employed by the Board while within the collective bargaining unit as defined in Section 1.02 below.
- The term "employee" as used in this Agreement shall mean all full-time and part-time 1.02 teachers (Pre-K-12) and other licensed non-administrative, non-managerial employees possessing Ohio Department of Education licensure including long term substitutes who have been employed by the District for at least sixty (60) consecutive workdays in the same position, full-time and part-time teachers while they teach summer school in the Board's School District, who are duly certified/licensed to teach in accordance with Ohio law, and who are employed under regular individual employment contracts by the Board; but excluding The Superintendent of Schools, Executive Director of Accountability and Business Affairs, Executive Director of Human Resources, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Assistant to the Treasurer, Directors, Supervisors, Principals, Assistant Principals, Assistants, Interns, Student Resources Coordinator, Athletic Director, Family Support Specialists, registered nurses lacking school nurse licensure, all temporary, casual and seasonal employees, student employees, other substitute employees, employees employed by non-public schools in the district, home instructors, psychologists, student teachers, teaching interns, teachers who teach only summer school, adult education teachers and instructors, and hourly paid employees, all employees excepted from the definition of "public employee" in Ohio Revised Code 4117.01 (C) (1) through (14) and all other employees not specifically included in the unit described above.
- 1.03 When the Board creates a new position that requires certification or licensure, and/or a position that could fit the definition of "professional employee" in ORC 4117.01(J), the Board will make a timely notification to the Association, and will provide the Association with the job description for the position. The Association will notify the Executive Director of Human Resources within twenty (20) days of receipt of the job description whether the Association believes the new position is a part of the bargaining unit. The parties shall engage in discussions in an attempt to reach agreement about the status of the new position. If the parties disagree about the bargaining unit status of the new position after such discussions have occurred, either party may file a Petition for Clarification of the Bargaining Unit which shall be filed with the State Employment Relations Board (SERB). The determination by SERB shall be final and binding on the parties.

#### ARTICLE II:

#### CHECK-OFF OF ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP DUES

- 2.01 The Association (WWTA, OEA, NEA, SWOEA) membership dues, initiation fees and assessments will be withheld by the Board from the paychecks of all Association members who have given an authorization to the Board to deduct Association membership dues, initiation fees and assessments from their paychecks and to remit such deductions to the Association or an affiliated organization.
- 2.02 The Association will furnish the Board Treasurer, in writing, with the current amount(s) of membership dues, initiation fees and assessments to be withheld together with a list of the parties to whom these monies should be sent.
- 2.03 An employee's authorization shall continue in effect until such time as the employee elects to revoke the authorization by written notice to the Board Treasurer.
- 2.04 Signed dues authorization forms must be submitted to the Board Treasurer by September 15 of each year for deductions to be made beginning with the last paycheck issued in each of the nine (9) months thereafter. New employees who are hired after September 15 of each year may submit an authorization to the Board Treasurer by the fifteenth (15) day of any month prior to the subsequent June 15, and deductions will begin with the last paycheck in the month the authorization is received and continuing with the last paycheck in each of the months thereafter through the following June.
- 2.05 The Association agrees to indemnify and hold the Board harmless against any and all claims that may arise out of or are in any way related to the deduction of Association membership dues, initiation fees or assessments pursuant to this Article.

#### ARTICLE III:

## RIGHTS OF THE BOARD AND ASSOCIATION

#### 3.01 BOARD MANAGEMENT RECOGNITION

The Association recognizes that the Board is the legally constituted body responsible for the management, direction and control of all the public schools of the Board and employees and other personnel employed by the Board, and for the determination of all resolutions, policies, practices, procedures, rules and regulations governing any and all aspects of the Board's School District.

# 3.02 BOARD MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The Board has the following enumerated rights, except as expressly and specifically modified by the express terms of this Agreement:

3.0201	To determine matters of inherent managerial policy, which include, but are not limited to, areas of discretion or policy such as the functions and programs of the Winton Woods City School District, standards of services, the Board's overall budget, utilization of technology, and organizational structure;
3.0202	To direct, supervise, evaluate or hire employees;
3.0203	To maintain and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Winton Woods City School District;
3.0204	To determine the overall methods, process, means, or personnel by which the operations of the Winton Woods City School District are to be conducted;
3.0205	To suspend, discipline, demote, or discharge for just cause, or layoff, transfer, assign, schedule, promote or retain employees;
3.0206	To determine the adequacy of the work force;
3.0207	To determine the overall mission of the Winton Woods City School District;
3.0208	To effectively manage the work force; and
3.0209	To take actions to carry out the mission of the Winton Woods City School District.

## 3.03 ASSOCIATION BUSINESS AND ACTIVITY

Association personnel and employees will not conduct any Association business or activity during any employee's working time during the normal workday, or during any

\_\_\_\_\_

employee's working time in excess of the normal workday, as defined in Article X of this Agreement, except by mutual agreement of the Board and Association or their designees, except that if an employee is disciplined during working time, the employee shall have the right to have one (1) Association representative present at the disciplinary meeting during working time.

## 3.04 ASSOCIATION LEAVE OF ABSENCE

3.0401

The Board will grant a leave of absence, with compensation, to six (6) Association delegates or alternates for attendance at the Ohio Education Association convention upon three (3) workdays' advance notice to the Board's Executive Director of Human Resources, but such leave shall not exceed two (2) workdays per employee in any school year. The Board shall pay for the compensation of any substitute personnel hired for the period of the leave of absence under this paragraph. In addition, the Board will grant the Association President or designee an aggregate of three (3) Association leave days with compensation per school year for members and leaders to attend other conferences and/or activities sponsored by the Ohio Education Association or the National Education Association. The Association agrees to provide at least fourteen (14) days notice of the request for such leave and to assume the cost of registration, lodging, meals and travel.

3.0402

The Board will grant a leave of absence, with compensation, to any employee who holds an elected office with the Ohio Education Association and/or National Education Association upon three (3) workday's advance notice to the Board's Executive Director of Human Resources, provided the duration of the leave will not exceed five (5) aggregate workdays during any one (1) school year. The Association shall pay the Board for the compensation of any substitute personnel the Board hires for the period of the leave of absence under this paragraph.

3.0403

The Association President shall be provided sixty (60) minutes (consecutive is recommended but in no event less than fifteen [15] minute intervals), exclusive of contractually provided planning and lunch, each school day for the purpose of conducting Association business. This time is only for the Association President and shall not supersede the provisions of Section 3.03. The scheduling of this time shall occur annually by mutual agreement between the building principal, the Association President, and the Executive Director of Human Resources.

#### 3.05 BOARD MEETINGS

3.0501

The Board will notify the Association President or his/her designee of all Board meeting(s) as set at the Board's January organizational meeting prior to the first regularly scheduled Board meeting. However, in the case of each emergency public Board meeting, each change, and/or addition, and/or cancellation, the Board shall make a good faith attempt to notify the

\_\_\_\_\_\_

Association President or his/her designee by telephone at designated telephone number(s) forty-eight (48) hours in advance.

3.0502

The Board will provide online access to the Association President of all Board agendas at the time agendas are made available to the members of the Board. Any written agenda changes or addenda will be sent to the Association President's home school prior to the Board meeting and an additional copy will be placed in the Association mailbox at the Central Office.

#### 3.06 PERSONNEL DIRECTORY

- 3.0601 The Board will update the employee directory and post it electronically by October 15 of each year. The Board shall make the Association President aware of the updated directory and confirm posting the update.
- 3.0602 Any employee shall have the right to have his/her phone number and/or home address withheld from the directory.
- 3.0603 If the Association requests the names, addresses, phone numbers, and/or school assignments of newly-employed employees, the Board shall supply said information, except if the newly employed employee objects to disclosure of his/her phone number.

## 3.07 COPIES OF PUBLIC INFORMATION

The Board will provide to the Association, upon request, a copy of any and all financial and other documents which by law are matters of public record. The Association shall pay for the cost of multiple copies.

## 3.08 ASSOCIATION USE OF SCHOOL BUILDINGS

The Association shall have the right to use the Board's school buildings for meetings, Monday through Friday, during employee non-working time, at reasonable times and places, not in conflict with other scheduled functions, with the prior approval of the Board or designee, including building principal, provided that use of the school buildings shall not result in any additional custodial, maintenance or repair cost to the Board.

## 3.09 DISSEMINATION OF ASSOCIATION INFORMATION

- 3.0901 The Association may distribute materials to Association members via the school mail, including electronic mail, in accordance with the Board's acceptable use policy. Such e-mail use will not interfere with a member's regular duties.
- 3.0902 Any materials distributed to employees by means of the employee's school mailboxes must identify the name of the organization producing the materials.

- 3.0903 The Board shall provide the Association with bulletin board space in the employee workroom or lounge in each school building for the purpose of posting Association information to members or employees.
- 3.0904 No political announcements will be posted on bulletin boards or e-mail. The word "political" as used in this Agreement refers to public sector candidate or issue endorsements, but does not include Association politics.

#### **ARTICLE IV:**

## NO WORK STOPPAGES

- 4.01 The Association agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither it nor its officers, agents, representatives or bargaining unit employees will authorize or engage in any work stoppage, strike, or other concerted refusal to perform contractual duties.
- 4.02 If the Board feels that there has been a violation of Section 4.01 above, the Board may notify the State Employment Relations Board to determine whether the action(s) is authorized under Chapter 4117 of the Ohio Revised Code.

#### **ARTICLE V:**

#### **GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE**

- 5.01 To invoke the grievance and arbitration procedures set forth in this Article, an employee, a group of employees and/or the Association must comply with all the terms and provisions of this Article. A grievance is defined as a dispute an employee or group of employees or the Association may have with the Board or the Board's representatives relating to the interpretation, application or alleged violation of the express terms of this Agreement. A grievance from a group of employees or the Association must have arisen out of the same subject matter similarly affecting each member of said group to constitute a group grievance.
- 5.02 Employees and groups of employees have the right to present grievances and have them adjusted without the intervention of the Association, as long as the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, and as long as the Association has the opportunity to be present at the adjustment, as provided in Section 4117.03(A) (5) of the Ohio Revised Code. An employee who has a grievance or a representative of a group of grievants shall have the right to have another employee of the Board present at the hearing at all steps of the grievance procedure. An employee who has a grievance or a representative of a group of grievants or the Association if it has a grievance shall also have the right to have a non-employee Association representative present at any hearing at any step of the grievance or arbitration procedure. The Board representative at any step of the grievance or arbitration procedure shall have the right to have another Board representative present at any hearing. Additional persons may be asked to be present at any grievance or arbitration hearing.
- 5.03 An earnest effort shall be made to adjust grievances promptly and in the following manner and order, except that a grievance may be filed at the Second Step instead of the First Step, when the subject of the grievance is not within the responsibility or control of the building principal or designee who would hear the grievance in the First Step.

## 5.0301 First Step:

- A. Should an employee, or group of employees or the Association claim a grievance, the grievance shall be filed within twenty (20) workdays after the event has occurred giving rise to the grievance. The grievance must be submitted in writing on a form as set forth in Appendix A of this Agreement, signed and dated, and presented to the building principal or designee directly involved who has authority in the matter. The grievance shall state:
  - (1) The alleged cause of the grievance, including date, time and place;

- (2) The provision or provisions of this Agreement about which there is a dispute relating to its interpretation, application or
  - alleged violation, and

    (3) The specific remedy requested.
  - B. The building principal or designee directly involved shall hold a hearing with the grievant or a representative of a group of grievants to investigate and discuss the grievance within five (5) workdays after the grievance is presented to the building principal or designee. The building principal or designee shall give a written answer to the grievant or the representative of a group of grievants and to the Association and Superintendent of the Board or designee, within five (5) workdays after the hearing.

# 5.0302 <u>Second Step</u>:

If the grievance is not settled in the First Step above, the written grievance may be presented by the grievant or representative of a group of grievants to the Superintendent of the Board or designee within five (5) workdays after receipt of the first step answer. Within five (5) workdays after receipt of the written grievance, the Superintendent or designee shall hold a hearing with the grievant or representative of a group of grievants, to investigate and discuss the grievance. Within five (5) workdays after the close of the hearing, the Superintendent or designee shall give the grievant or the representative of a group of grievants, a written answer to the grievance.

## 5.0303 Third Step:

A. If the grievance is not settled in the Second Step above, the written grievance may be presented by the Association to arbitration by serving a written arbitration notice on the Superintendent or designee within ten (10) workdays after receipt of the Second Step answer. No grievance may be submitted to arbitration without the consent of the Association and the Association shall be the sole and exclusive representative of all grievants in every arbitration proceeding. Within five (5) workdays after receipt of such arbitration notice, a representative of the Board and a representative of the Association shall mutually attempt to select an arbitrator to hear and decide the grievance. If they are unable to agree upon the selection of an arbitrator, either representative shall request the American Arbitration Association (AAA) to submit a panel of arbitrators in accordance with AAA rules. Within five (5) workdays after receipt of such list by the Association and the Board, the parties will attempt to select an arbitrator from the list. If the parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator from the list, either party shall again request AAA to submit a second list of arbitrators in accordance with AAA rules. Within five (5) workdays after receipt

of the second list by the Association and the Board, each party shall return the list to AAA in accordance with AAA rules.

- B. Only written grievances which directly involve the interpretation, application or alleged violation of an express term of this Agreement, may be submitted to arbitration. The arbitrator shall limit him/herself to the precise issue(s) submitted in the written grievance noticed for arbitration and the arbitrator shall have no authority to determine any other issue(s) or matter(s) not so submitted to the arbitrator. The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, or change, modify or amend any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement, or any other written agreements between the Board and Association, and no arbitrator shall have any authority to hear or determine a dispute involving the exercise of a Board right which is within the exclusive authority of the Board as set forth in this Agreement.
- C. All decisions and awards of an arbitrator, if within his/her authority as defined in this Agreement, shall be final and binding on the Association, the Board and all the employees covered by this Agreement.
- D. Each party to the arbitration shall pay the costs and expenses incurred by it in connection with the arbitration, except that seventy-five percent (75%) of the costs and expenses of the arbitrator and the cost of a hearing room shall be paid by the losing party and twenty-five percent (25%) of said costs and expenses shall be paid by the prevailing party. Either party may have a court reporter at any arbitration hearing. The parties shall share the court reporter cost if they mutually agree to have a court reporter present. If the parties do not so agree, the party desiring the reporter shall pay the full cost; provided, however, that if the other party wishes to purchase a copy of the court reporter's record or review the record, that party will then be obligated to pay one-half (1/2) of the cost of the court reporter.
- E. The arbitrator shall issue a written opinion and award within thirty (30) calendar days after the close of the hearing except if the arbitrator is unable to meet said time limitations due to circumstances beyond the control of the arbitrator. A copy of the arbitrator's opinion and award shall be sent to each party to the arbitration.
- 5.04 Any grievance which has not been presented in the grievance and arbitration procedure within the time limits for presentation of grievances, and any grievance which is not appealed to the next step of the grievance or arbitration procedure within the applicable time limits specified herein, shall be considered as settled and shall not be subject to

further discussion or appeal under the grievance and arbitration procedure of this Agreement.

- 5.05 No employee covered by this Agreement may invoke any other remedy or legal proceeding in any Court of law against the Board, without first having exhausted all the remedies and steps available to him or her, as set forth in this Article. This provision shall apply only in regard to any matter which is grievable under this Article.
- 5.06 Either party may request the presence of an employee as a necessary witness during the course of any grievance hearing or subpoena the presence of any employee or other person during any arbitration hearing in accordance with applicable law, provided, however, that the Board shall not be required to provide substitutes for more than three (3) employee witnesses at any one (1) hearing if the hearing is scheduled during working time as defined in this Agreement.
- 5.07 All steps and time limits specified in this Article are mandatory and the steps may be waived and the time limits extended or reduced only by written mutual agreement of the Association and the Board's Superintendent or designee.
- 5.08 No grievance may be written, presented, investigated, processed or discussed during employee student contact time or during any time the normal workday is lengthened under Section 10.02 of this Agreement, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the grievant, representative of a group of grievants or the Association on behalf of the grievant or group of grievants and the Board's Superintendent or designee.
- 5.09 An arbitrator may not hear and determine more than one (1) grievance unless the presentation of more than one (1) grievance to the arbitrator is mutually agreed to by the Board and the Association.
- 5.10 If no answer to a grievance is given within the time limits of this Article, the grievance will be deemed to be denied and may proceed to the next step of the grievance or arbitration procedure as provided for in this Article.
- 5.11 No reprisal shall be taken against any employee initiating, participating in, and/or abiding by the grievance procedure. No record, document, or communication concerning a grievance shall be placed in the personnel file of any employee involved in the grievance procedure.
- 5.12 For purposes of this Article only, except for the summer recess, a workday is one of the adopted bargaining unit member school calendar days. During the summer recess, workdays shall be defined as Monday through Friday excluding holidays, with the exception of the month of July, in which there will be no workdays as defined in this Article.

#### **ARTICLE VI:**

#### COMMITTEES

# 6.01 JOINT TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE

- 6.0101 A joint technology advisory committee will be created to collect and study data and recommend actions to assure stakeholders that current technology is being used to its full potential.
- The committee will consist of four (4) employees selected by the Association: two (2) elementary staff members (employees in buildings serving students in any configuration of grades Pre-K through 6), one (1) middle school staff member, and one (1) high school staff member; and four (4) administrators selected by the Superintendent: one (1) elementary Principal, one (1) middle school or high school Principal, one (1) representative from the Department of Teaching and Learning, and the Director of Technology. The Directory of Technology will chair the committee.
- 6.0103 The committee will meet a minimum of once a quarter during the school year. A calendar of meeting dates will be established at the first meeting each school year.
- 6.0104 The Director of Technology will post the advisory committee meeting minutes on the Technology Advisory Committee WIKI within one (1) week after each meeting.
- 6.0105 Members of the joint technology advisory committee, the WWTA President, and the Executive Director of Human Resources will have an opportunity to respond to the minutes within thirty (30) days of receipt of the minutes. Any such response will be directed to the Director of Technology.

## 6.02 BOARD-ASSOCIATION COMMITTEE

- Regular meetings between the Board and the Association shall be scheduled and convened to discuss matters of mutual concern. Specific grievances shall not be discussed, nor shall the meetings be considered bargaining sessions. Meetings shall be scheduled on a mutually convenient date, but will be conducted not less than monthly. Committee meetings are not intended to replace informal communications between the Board and the Association and/or their representatives.
- 6.0202 A committee consisting of four (4) representatives shall constitute the Board Committee. A committee consisting of four (4) representatives shall constitute the Association Committee.

6.0203 Each party may submit agenda items to the Superintendent's office at least ten (10) calendar days before a scheduled committee meeting. Preparation of an agenda shall be through the Superintendent's office and shall be submitted to the committee members not less than seven (7)

calendar days prior to the meeting.

6.0204 Discussions at the Board-Association Committee meetings will not be considered collective bargaining.

## 6.03 BUILDING ADVISORY COMMITTEES

As soon as possible in each school year, Association members will elect a building advisory committee for each school building which will meet with the building administrators once every two (2) months or as needed by mutual consent of the parties during the regular school year to review and discuss building needs and concerns. The building advisory committee will consist of three (3) members in each elementary grade level building, four (4) members at the Middle School and four (4) members at the High School. Building advisory committees may invite resource persons as needed to address specialized issues.

6.0302 Association members elected to the building advisory committees may request that evaluations conducted during their year(s) of service on the committee be performed by other qualified administrative personnel not assigned to their building or area. Such requests shall be honored.

6.0303 The building advisory committees are intended to be advisory only and are intended to assist the administrators and the school staff, through the process of open discussion, to address needs and concerns. committees shall assume the responsibility for being knowledgeable about matters which relate to their function. The building advisory committees shall not deal with issues that either Association members or administrators believe are grievance matters, nor shall the committees have the authority to alter the Collective Bargaining Agreement. Committee meetings are not intended to replace informal communication between employees or Association representatives and their building administrators. WWTA may, after investigation and review of a particular matter, present summarized information for discussion without identifying the individuals(s) who brought the issue forward. In the event the administrator finds that he or she cannot effectively address the concern(s) without additional information, including the source of the concerns(s), WWTA will provide such information upon request or withdraw the issue. WWTA may thereafter submit the matter to the Superintendent for review and consideration.

6.0304 The WWTA shall conduct orientation sessions for newly elected building advisory committee members prior to the first scheduled meeting each school year.

- 6.0305 Each building advisory committee shall select a chairperson at its first meeting each year who shall set the dates for the bi-monthly meetings in consultation with the administrator, and conduct the meetings. The chairperson shall also be responsible for either performing or delegating
  - A. Provide employees with the advisory committee form (Appendix R)
  - B. Notify employees of the meeting dates
  - C. Supervise the screening of issues to determine if they are appropriate
  - D. Prepare the agenda

the following tasks:

- E. Provide the administrator a copy of the agenda at least three (3) days prior to the meeting
- F. Inform all employees in the building and the Association President of matters discussed at the meetings
- 6.0306 Each employee shall have the right to have matters placed on the advisory committee agenda and all affected employees shall be informed of matters discussed at the advisory committee meetings in their building by WWTA.
- 6.0307 Employee concerns which are not resolved by the building advisory committees, and continue to be of concern may be submitted to the Board-Association Committee described in Section 6.02 above. Such concerns should be submitted to the Association President or designee for placement on the agenda.

## 6.04 EMPLOYEE SERVICE ON BOARD COMMITTEES

- No employee shall be required to serve on any Board committee unless such service is indicated in a supplemental job description. All other committee service shall be voluntary. All non-supplemental work on curriculum and textbook committees shall be paid at the hourly rate for summer school set forth in Section 12.05 of this Agreement.
- 6.0402 The Association shall have the right to appoint an employee representative to any committee formed to investigate, organize and/or implement the relocation or closing of an entire building.

## 6.05 LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (LPDC)

6.0501 The parties agree that the Winton Woods Teachers' Association shall be involved as a full partner in any and all activities related to the

implementation and operation of the Local Professional Development Committee (LPDC). Any oversight of the LPDC shall be organized jointly by the District and the Association, and there shall be a majority of teachers appointed by the Association at all levels.

- 6.0502 There shall be one LPDC for Winton Woods City Schools, which shall have district wide scope. The responsibilities of the LPDC shall be as set forth in Section 3319.22 (C) (1), ORC, and as may be set forth in any rules or regulations promulgated by the Ohio Department of Education. The committee shall have up to eight (8) members; up to six (6) teacher members selected by the Association, and up to two (2) administrative members selected by the Superintendent. Whenever an administrator's coursework plan is being discussed or voted upon, the LPDC shall, at the request of one of its administrative members, cause a majority of the committee to consist of administrative members by reducing the number of teacher members voting on the plan.
- 6.0503 The term of office for committee members shall be three (3) years, and no more than one (1) teacher member and one (1) administrative member may be replaced each year, unless member resignation(s) makes additional replacements necessary. The LPDC shall always retain a majority of teacher members.
- 6.0504 Any teacher vacancies will be filled by selection of the Association, and any administrative vacancies will be filled by the Superintendent.
- 6.0505 Meetings will be held at an advertised location at advertised times and dates no less than one (1) time per quarter, at the convenience of the committee. Meetings of the LPDC will be advertised in accordance with law. Notices will be posted to advertise meetings. LPDC members may convene additional meetings as needed.
- 6.0506 The LPDC shall develop its standards, by-laws, operating procedures, appeals process for any member whose individual professional development plan or whose execution of that plan is not approved by the LPDC in concert with guidelines issued by the Ohio Department of Education.
- 6.0507 The LPDC standards, by-laws, operating procedures, forms, etc., shall be submitted to the Board and the Association for comment prior to adoption.
- 6.0508 For any work outside the contractual workday, the rate of pay for teacher members shall be the rate of pay set forth in Section 12.0501 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- 6.0509 A member who appeals an LPDC decision shall have the right, upon request, to an Association representative at any step of the appeal procedure.

# 6.06 MASTER/LEAD TEACHER PROGRAM

#### 6.0701 Master/Lead Teacher Committee

- A. The Board will implement a program to identify Master/Lead Teachers, in accordance with the guidelines promulgated by the Educator Standards Board and the Ohio Department of Education.
- B. There will be a Master/Lead Teacher Committee consisting of five (5) appointees with three (3) members appointed by the Association and two (2) administrators selected by the Superintendent. The Association shall choose and appoint the teacher members of the committee. Those teachers selected to be committee members will have achieved National Board Certification and/or have attained the designation of Master/Lead Teacher through the committee's process wherever possible. The Superintendent or designee will choose and appoint the remaining committee members. Committee members shall serve a two year term.
- C. The Master/Lead Teacher Committee will meet as necessary to develop its standards, operating procedures, by-laws, forms, etc., inform the members of its functions, review applications and complete all necessary paperwork to be in compliance with State of Ohio guidelines. Meetings will be scheduled at the convenience of the committee. The Committee shall determine its own appeals procedure. Such procedure and its results are not subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures outlined in this agreement.
- D. The Master/Lead Teacher Committee will submit its standards, bylaws, operating procedures, forms, etc. to the Board and to the Association for comment prior to adoption.
- E. The rate of pay for Association members of the Master/Lead Teacher Committee for work outside the regular contract day shall be the contractual hourly rate of pay for bargaining unit members in accordance with Article XII, Section 12.0501.

## 6.0702 Master/Lead Teacher Applicants

A. The application process to be designated a Master/Lead Teacher will be strictly voluntary. An applicant who has completed a credible application but is not successful and is not designated a Master/Lead Teacher will not suffer any negative consequence in his or her appraisal or any other employment related matter.

- B. In accordance with the guidelines of the State of Ohio, in order to qualify to submit an application to be a Master/Lead Teacher, the
  - employee must:
    - 1. hold a valid professional license or certificate
    - 2. have taught a minimum of seven (7) years
    - 3. work a minimum of one hundred twenty (120) contract days during the school year
    - 4. work under a teaching contract/employed as a teacher
  - C. An applicant who is successful and is designated a Master/Lead Teacher will receive a onetime stipend of \$750.00 the year of the initial designation and an additional stipend of \$750.00 upon each five (5) year renewal.

#### **ARTICLE VII:**

#### INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

## 7.01 GENERAL

- 7.0101 All applicants for employment by the Board must submit to a criminal record check at the applicant's cost and provide any information required for such a check including but not limited to a fingerprint sample. The criminal record check will be conducted in the manner prescribed by law.
- 7.0102 The Board may employ an applicant prior to receiving a criminal record check report on a conditional basis. If the results of the criminal record check are unsatisfactory, the applicant who was conditionally employed will be immediately and summarily dismissed.
- 7.0103 All individual employee employment contracts between the Board and its employees shall be in writing and signed by the employee, the Board's Treasurer and the Board's President and shall be subject to and subordinate to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement which shall take precedence over and control any and all individual employee employment contracts and any prior policies or practices of the Board.

## 7.02 INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE LIMITED CONTRACTS

- 7.0201 Employees holding a resident educator license or one of a higher grade that meets the required teaching standards, shall be awarded individual employment contracts in accordance with the following sequence:
  - A. First year of continuous employment one (1) year contract;
  - B. Second year of continuous employment one (1) year contract;
  - C. Third year of continuous employment one (1) year contract;
  - D. Fourth year of continuous employment one (1) year contract.
  - E. Fifth year of continuous employment five (5) year contract.

#### 7.03 INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE CONTINUING CONTRACTS

7.0301 All individual employee continuing contracts will continue in effect until the employee resigns, elects to retire, or until the continuing contract is terminated or suspended for just cause or for reasons set forth in this Agreement or in any provision of the Ohio Revised Code.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### 7.0302

The requirements for an individual continuing contract shall be in accordance with Ohio law. An employee who has met all qualifications and/or requirements for a continuing contract shall provide a written request for continuing contract status (Appendix Q) to his or her immediate supervisor, with a copy to the Executive Director of Human Resources, on or before September 15 of the school year during which the request for continuing contract status is to be considered. Documentation that all requirements have been met must be on file with the Executive Director of Human Resources by April 1 of the same school year. Employees who have complied with the above requirements will be considered by the Board for a continuing contract during the term of a limited contract, and if the continuing contract is not granted at the Board's sole discretion, the terms of the limited contract will continue without interruption, as if there had been no request for a continuing contract. Disputes concerning the Board's decision not to issue an individual continuing contract shall be subject to the provisions of the Ohio Revised Code, but shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure of this Agreement.

## 7.04 INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE SUPPLEMENTAL LIMITED CONTRACTS

Employees who agree to perform a supplemental duty which may or may not be in addition to the employee's normal or regular duties, shall be issued an individual employee supplemental limited contract that shall be limited to a specified length of time unless earlier suspended or terminated for just cause or for reasons set forth in this Agreement or in any provision of the Ohio Revised Code. Disputes concerning the suspension pending termination or termination of an individual employee supplemental limited contract shall be subject to the provisions of the Ohio Revised Code but shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure of this Agreement. All supplemental contracts expire annually without notice of nonrenewal.

## 7.05 SUSPENSION/TERMINATION OF INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE CONTRACTS

Termination of individual employee contracts and suspension pending Board action to terminate individual employee contracts shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Ohio Revised Code.

#### 7.06 EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

7.0601

Discipline and suspension for disciplinary reasons other than pending termination of an individual employee contract shall be for just cause or for reasons set forth in this Agreement or in any provision of the Ohio Revised Code, and such action(s) shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure of this Agreement.

A. The Board's right to suspend, discipline, demote or discharge an employee for just cause, consistent with the provisions of Article III, will generally involve application of progressive disciplinary action:

oral reprimand, written reprimand, unpaid suspension of 1-3 days, unpaid suspension of more than 3 days, and termination.

- B. A supervisor's note memorializing any oral reprimand and/or any written reprimand will be placed in the employee's personnel file with a copy of same provided to the employee. All such memoranda shall clearly identify the writing as either an "oral reprimand" or a "written reprimand."
- C. The principles of progressive discipline will not be applicable to an employee's gross and/or criminal misconduct.
- 7.0602 An employee shall be entitled to Association representation at any disciplinary conference.
- 7.0603 The Board will notify the affected employee of any report made pursuant to the requirements of R.C. 3319.313.

# 7.07 NONRENEWAL OF INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE LIMITED CONTRACTS

Except for those individuals employed as long-term substitute teachers who are placed on a regular limited contract after October 1, nonrenewal of individual employee limited contracts shall be based only on performance deficiencies as documented in the employee job performance evaluation, Article VIII, of this Agreement. The employee shall be given the opportunity to correct any documented teaching deficiencies. The employee's appraiser will inform the employee of any recommendation for nonrenewal no later than the first day in May. The Board will provide written notice of its intention not to renew the employee's contract no later than June 1.

In the case of an individual employed as a long-term substitute teacher who is placed on a regular limited contract he/she may be nonrenewed without performance evaluations and/or documented performance deficiencies. However, the written notice of nonrenewal shall be given to the long-term substitute teacher on or before **June 1**. This provision is intended to supersede ORC 3319.11 and 3319.111 and any contrary provisions in this Agreement.

#### 7.08 "HIGHLY QUALIFIED" REQUIREMENTS

- A. If a teacher is assigned to a position for which he/she is not Highly Qualified under federal and state law, a conference will be held between the teacher and the Superintendent or designee at the time of the assignment to discuss Highly Qualified status and mutually agree on a plan to enable the teacher to become Highly Qualified in his/her new assignment.
- B. If a member chooses to become Highly Qualified by passing an Ohio Assessment for Educators ("OAE"), the Board will reimburse the member for the cost of the OAE, upon passage, so long as the member meets the Highly

Qualified requirements as a result of passing the test. This provision will apply so long as HQT is required by State and/or Federal law.

#### **ARTICLE VIII:**

## 8.01 EMPLOYEE JOB PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

8.0101 This Employee Job Performance Evaluation is intended to replace and supersede the procedural evaluation provisions of Ohio Revised Code 3319.111. The Ohio Teacher Evaluation System (OTES) Framework shall be used for evaluating teachers. The rubrics used for teaching staff shall correspond to those prescribed by the OTES. Members who do not instruct students 50% of their work time and members who are not licensed through the Ohio Department of Education as teachers will be evaluated using *The Danielson Framework for Teaching 2<sup>nd</sup> Edition* rubrics. General provisions of the evaluation procedure shall include the following:

#### A. Orientation of staff shall be:

- (1) Between the start of school and October 1. District administration shall hold an orientation meeting which is mandatory for each employee with the exception of any teacher who has attained a rating of Accomplished or Skilled the previous year, and who, therefore, is not being evaluated. At this orientation meeting each employee will be oriented to procedures, process, criteria, instruments and the evaluation timetable.
- (2) The orientation meeting will be offered during paid time such as a professional development day. All new employees and the Association President will receive copies of any board adopted materials which become the basis for the evaluation.
- (3) At the orientation meeting, employees will receive copies of forms to be used.
- B. An employee who is asked to attend a formal classroom observation post conference or job performance evaluation conference shall have the right to have a representative of his/her own choosing present at the conference.
- C. All formal classroom observations of employees by the Board's appraiser for the purpose of job performance appraisals shall be conducted with the full knowledge of the employee. An initial conference initiates the evaluation process with a dialogue between the evaluator and the teacher regarding the priorities for the approaching school year. Employees must be given advance written or electronic notification of at least three (3) workdays by the supervisor conducting the pre-conference. One formal observation may be unannounced and without notice. The balance of formal observations will be announced. Employees shall have a minimum

OTES evaluation completed.

of three (3) days after an unannounced observation to have their

- D. A minimum of three (3) formal classroom observations by the Board's appraiser(s) for an employee's job performance appraisal shall be conducted in an employee's first year of employment in the district, in any year in which the employee will be considered for a continuing contract, and in any year in which the employee is nonrenewed or terminated for performance reasons. The first formal classroom observation shall be conducted by October 31, the second formal classroom observation shall be conducted by February 1, and the third formal classroom observation shall be conducted by March 31.
  - 1. Lesson or unit objective(s)
  - 2. Prior learning experiences of the students
  - 3. Characteristics of the learners/learning environment
  - 4. Instructional strategies that will be used to meet learning objectives
  - 5. Student activities and materials
  - 6. Differentiation based on needs of students
  - 7. Assessment (data) collected to demonstrate student learning
- E. All formal classroom observations of employees by Board appraisers shall be for no less than thirty (30) consecutive minutes. When announced observations are cancelled by the Administration, employees will not be required to redo their preconference form for a lesson. However, when a teacher cancels due to absence, the observation becomes an additional unannounced observation.

No employee shall be observed more than once in a study skills class.

- F. An employee and the Board's appraiser shall meet to discuss the results of the formal classroom observation within seven (7) workdays after the formal classroom observation has been completed, unless extraordinary conditions require a reasonable extension of these time limits. The Administration shall give the employee written or electronic notification at least three (3) workdays prior to the date of the post conference.
- G. Written records of all formal classroom observations shall be provided by the Board's appraiser to the employee and a copy will be placed in the employee's personnel file. The employee will be given completed copies of the formal classroom observation report within seven (7) workdays after the formal classroom observation,

unless extraordinary conditions require a reasonable extension of these time limits.

- H. The final summative evaluation conference must be held prior to May 1 of the appraisal year, unless extraordinary conditions require a reasonable extension of these time limits. As a part of the final summative evaluation, each teacher will be assigned a rating of Accomplished, Skilled, Developing, or Ineffective.
- I. Each employee is expected to meet District standards of performance in the major categories of planning and preparation, classroom environment, instruction and assessment. professional responsibility, which will be illustrated in the rubric/interpretative guide. In some instances, it may be judged by the Board that the employee, although not rendering fully satisfactory performance, has evidenced sufficient initiative, cooperation and growth to merit the opportunity of a "second chance." This alternative is especially in order if the employee has been in an assignment which may not have presented a reasonable opportunity for success. If it is determined that District standards are not met by an employee, documentation based upon performance in the current school year is required. Diagnosis and prescription for remediation must accompany the documentation, all of which shall be recorded on the official personnel file copy of the appraisal conference record and the performance improvement plan. The employee will have an opportunity to provide input toward the content of the prescription.
- Walkthroughs will be a part of the formal evaluation process. A J. walkthrough is defined as a brief classroom visit by a Board employed credentialed administrative evaluator of approximately ten (10) minutes. If more than one (1) evaluator is involved in the walkthrough and each provides feedback, each feedback form counts as one (1) walkthrough. During these visits, the evaluator will look for specific instructional standards which are a part of the evaluation rubric. It is understood that not every standard will be seen on every visit. Employees will receive written feedback for official walkthroughs either electronically or on paper within fortyeight (48) hours of the walkthrough unless extraordinary circumstances require a reasonable extension of this time. Employees can expect two (2) to four (4) walkthroughs completed as a part of the evaluation process, with a maximum of ten (10) walkthroughs under normal circumstances. Evaluators may perform additional walkthroughs under the following circumstances:
  - 1. During the employee's first four years of employment with Winton woods City Schools;

- 2. During the year a member is under consideration for a continuing contract;
- 3. During a year that a member is on an improvement plan.
- 4. Upon request of the teacher.
- K. An employee may include or attach additional written statements within three (3) months to the final summative evaluation or any other job performance evaluation record and the Board's appraiser may be asked to sign such statements to acknowledge examination and receipt of same.
- L. The employee and the Board's evaluator shall sign the official file copy of the final summative evaluation at the time of the conference to indicate they have both examined and discussed the contents of the evaluation.
- M. A copy of the official file copy of each evaluation conference record shall be provided to each employee. The original copy shall be kept in the employee's personnel file and be made available for examination by the employee upon prior request.
- N. In accordance with Ohio law, no more than 50% of a teacher's evaluation shall consist of student growth measures. These growth measures will be included as a portion of the evaluation of any teacher who is engaged in instruction at least 50% of their work day. Growth measures will not be used for bargaining unit members who do not instruct students for at least 50% of their work day or do not have teacher licenses issued by the Ohio Department of Education. A pattern of three (3) years of student growth data may be used to support a negative personnel decision; e.g., nonrenewal, termination, reduction in force, or denial of a continuing contract.
- O. For added value measures for teachers who receive them, may be 50% of the teacher's evaluation. Other student growth measures such as the growth of students toward student learning objectives ("SLOS") may make up the balance of the required growth measure consistent with state law. Growth measures used at each grade level/subject area will be developed in consultation with the affected teaching staff.
  - A SLO committee consisting of teachers appointed by the Association and administrators shall be responsible for vetting all student growth measures submitted from building level teams and making a recommendation for approval to the Superintendent or designee.

- 2. Teachers selected for the SLO Committee shall be representative of the teaching staff as a whole.
- Teachers shall not be permitted to vet student growth measures for their content area or areas for which they may have a conflict of interest.
- 4. The Superintendent or designee shall choose and appoint administrative committee members.
- 5. The Superintendent or designee shall direct the work of the SLO Committee and shall have final approval authority of the student growth measures recommended by the SLO Committee.
- 6. Committee members shall serve for the entire school year and may serve subsequent terms.
- 7. The President shall provide names of teachers to serve on the SLO Committee by August 1.
- 8. The SLO Committee will submit its operating procedures, forms, etc. to the Superintendent or designee and to the Association prior to adoption.

The content subsections "R" and "S" of this section shall be in effect only so long as required by Ohio law. Should Ohio law no longer require that "Value-added data" be used as a majority of or the entire student growth measure the parties will meet in accordance with Article XVIII, Section 18.0601 to bargain the effects of any change in the law.

- P. Teachers who meet above-expected levels of student growth must develop a professional growth plan. Teachers who meet expected levels of student growth must develop a professional growth plan collaboratively with a credentialed evaluator. Teachers who meet below-expected levels of student growth must develop an improvement plan with the credentialed evaluator.
- Q. All employees shall be evaluated in accordance with this Agreement. If an employee who is in the final year of an individual limited contract is unavailable for observation, evaluation and/or conferences due to the employee's extended and/or repeated absences such that the Board is unable to meet observations, evaluation or conference timelines, the Board may issue said employee a one-year limited contract of employment without additional notice and such contract will not be considered an

extended limited contract under Section 3319.11 of the Ohio Revised Code.

8.0103 Procedural violations of this Article are subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure of this Agreement. All employee job performance appraisals and the results thereof shall not be considered disciplinary actions and shall not be subject to the grievance or arbitration procedure of this Agreement. However, the Board and the Association agree that if the Association grieves a disciplinary action, a related notation or rating on the employee's performance appraisal may be grieved as a part of the same grievance, or on a separate grievance, if the disciplinary grievance is successful.

## 8.0104 Student Growth Measure Error Procedure

- A. "Substantive error" An error in student growth measure(s) that the teacher believes lowers the final rating of the teacher on an annual evaluation.
- B. If a teacher believes there is a substantive error in the student growth measures used to form a portion of his or her evaluation, the teacher may file the WWCSD Student Growth Measure form in Appendix W.

#### C. Possible situations

- 1. Error in SLO data or vendor assessment data
  - a. If the teacher believes there has been a substantive error in SLO or vendor assessment data prior to the member's information being submitted to eTPES, there will be a meeting with the member and the teacher and the administration will investigate and will work together to rectify the calculation if possible. They will document that the meeting occurred using the "WWCSD SGM Error Form."
  - b. If the teacher believes there has been a substantive error in SLO or vendor assessment data after the information has been submitted to eTPES, there will be good faith efforts to investigate and to work with ODE to correct the data, if possible. They will document that a meeting occurred to discuss the situation using the "WWCSD SGM Error Form."

#### 2. Error in value-added data

If the teacher believes there has been a substantive error in the value-added data, then there will be good faith efforts to investigate and to work with Battelle for Kids or the then current value-added

ODE vendor to correct the data, if possible. They will document that a meeting occurred to discuss the situation using the "WWCSD SGM Error Form."

- D. If a substantive error in a student growth measure cannot be corrected in time for the completion of the annual evaluation, the particular student growth measure of the evaluation will not be used in any high stakes decision making to non-renewal, termination, continuing contract denial or reduction in force.
- 8.01054 The Board will not change the District's Staff Evaluation program, including standards of performance, during any school year. If the Board is required to change the District's "Staff Evaluation Program," including standards of performance, for a coming year, due to changes in Ohio law, employees and the Association President will be notified in writing of the changes prior to the start of that school year.
- 8.0106 Forms used for observations, walkthroughs, appraisals, growth plans, plans of improvement and correcting errors are found as Appendices V, W, X, Y.

#### JOB PERFORMANCE

## 8.02 MENTOR TEACHER PROGRAM

#### 8.0201 Purpose

Mentor Teacher Program is a program of support provided by the Winton Woods City School District to meet the unique needs of an individual in the first year of employment under a teaching or educational personnel license.

## 8.0202 Definitions

- A. Mentor Teacher: a person assigned to provide professional support to an individual in the first year of employment under a classroom teaching license or an educational personnel license.
- B. Resident Educator: a teacher entering the teaching profession for the first time holding a resident educator license or a two year provisional license.

## 8.0203 <u>Selection Criteria for Mentor Teachers</u>

- A. All mentors must successfully complete mandatory mentor training as required by the Ohio Department of Education.
- B. The mentor teacher must have a minimum of three (3) years of teaching experience in the district.
- C. The mentor teacher must have demonstrated good to excellent teaching performance on evaluations conducted by the Winton Woods City Schools.
- D. The mentor teacher must hold a valid teaching or educational personnel certificate/license. The Superintendent's designee will match mentor and resident educator. He/She will endeavor to assign a mentor who is currently teaching in the same area of certification/licensure or who has past experience in that area. It is most beneficial when the mentor and the resident educator are assigned to the same building. Other factors to be taken into consideration are:
  - (1) grade level/subject area
  - (2) experience
  - (3) gender
  - (4) Interpersonal skills

## 8.0204 Selection Process

Mentor assignment shall not be made until staffing requirements have been met and new teachers identified by building assignment.

## 8.0205 Program Design

- A. The mentor teacher will conference with the new staff member before or after school at least one (1) hour per week on a flexible schedule.
- B. A substitute teacher will be provided to release the mentor from teaching duties for the equivalent of two (2) one-half (1/2) day periods per month, September through May, to observe and conference with the new teacher during the school day.
- C. Mentors shall not serve as evaluators of teaching performance, but as counselors and advisors.
- D. All interaction, written or oral, between the mentor teacher and the resident educator shall be regarded as confidential. Any violation of this tenet by a mentor teacher shall constitute grounds for immediate removal from their role as a mentor teacher. This does not preclude the completion of forms by the mentor for the Superintendent's designee. Forms shall include such data as meeting times, length of session, topics, and suggestions for entry-year program improvement.
- E. The Resident Educator Program shall be consistent with state requirements.

## 8.0206 <u>Assignment/Compensation</u>

- A. Mentor teachers shall be assigned from the teaching staff at each school where a resident educator is assigned, whenever possible.
- B. A mentor teacher shall be assigned one (1) entry-year teacher. Mentor teachers shall be compensated at the following annual rates based upon experience and mentor training under a supplemental contract if assigned.

#### Resident Educator Mentors

- (1) Year 1 Resident Educator: \$1,500.00 per Resident Educator
- (2) Year 2 Resident Educator: \$ 1,500.00 per Resident Educator

Resident Educator Facilitator (Up to ten Resident Educators)

(3) Year 3 Resident Educator: \$500.00

C. The Board will endeavor to pair new teachers to the District with a veteran teacher to assist with on-boarding. Each principal shall be allotted three hundred dollars (\$300) for every veteran teacher who is paired with a teacher new to the district, to assist with onboarding.

## 8.0207 Mentor Orientation

Prior to working with Resident Educators, mentors shall be provided an orientation to their responsibilities by the Superintendent's designee. Mandatory training will be held where training in knowledge and skills necessary to perform mentoring will be offered at the state level. Provision will also be made for required follow-up reporting of mentor activities. The mentor teacher shall keep a log of all classroom visits and consultations, submitting the same to the Superintendent's designee upon request and at the conclusion of the school year, as justification for compensation.

## 8.0208 Program Review/Revisions

- A. A committee representing mentor teachers, resident educators, the Superintendent's designee and the Association shall be formed prior to the end of each school year to assess and evaluate the program. Recommendations shall be submitted in the form of a written report to the Association and the Superintendent.
- B. Upon adoption by the State of Ohio of guidelines for the new four year residency program, the parties agree to meet and negotiate pursuant to Article XVIII, Section 18.0601, such changes in this mentor provision as are necessary to meet the requirements of the four year residency program.
- 8.03 The Board and the Association understand that one or more pilot programs may be instituted during the term of this contract to provide peer mentors to teachers who have been placed on performance review. If such a pilot program is to be instituted, the Board and the Association will negotiate the wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment for participants in the program.

## ARTICLE IX:

#### REDUCTION IN FORCE

- 9.01 If it becomes necessary for the Board to reduce the number of employees due to declining enrollment, discontinuance or reduction of a program or teaching area, return to duty of employee(s) on leave, consolidation of the school district with one or more other districts, or financial reasons, the procedures set forth in this Article shall govern the reduction in force where Ohio law allows, and ORC 3319.17 shall govern where required by Ohio law. The Board, in its sole and discretion, shall determine in which types of employee certifications/licenses the reduction in force shall occur and the number of employees to be reduced in each type of certification/licensure. The terms —certification/licensurell as applied to elementary staff (Pre-K - 6) means that all elementary classroom teachers will be placed on a single seniority list regardless of the type of elementary certification/licensure held. There will be no reduction in force for any reason, other than the return to duty of employee(s) on leave, until the issue has been publicly presented and discussed at a regular meeting of the Board, thereby providing the opportunity for input by the Association, and no formal action by the Board will take place until the following regular monthly Board meeting.
- 9.02 When there is a reduction in force, every effort will be made to reduce the number of active employees within the certification/licensure types to be reduced through attrition as the result of the resignations and retirements. If further reductions in the number of active employees within certification/licensure types are required, the Board on the Superintendent's recommendation will suspend without pay the individual employee contracts of those employees then actively working within the certification/licensure types to be reduced. Seniority, as defined in this Article, shall govern the reduction in force among the actively working employees within the certification/licensure type whose evaluations are comparable. Employees on paid or unpaid leave of absence at the time of a reduction in force, who would have been suspended without pay had they been actively working shall be considered suspended without pay and not on a paid or unpaid leave of absence.
  - 9.0201 Seniority is defined as the length of continuous full-time service of each employee from the date of most recent hire by the Board while under teacher certification/licensure and individual employment contract within the Winton Woods City School District. Casual substitute teaching shall not be considered continuous full-time service.
  - 9.0202 For the purposes of this Contract, full-time employment will be defined as employment under individual employment contract for one hundred twenty (120) to one hundred eighty-five (185) workdays. Part-time employment will be defined as employment under individual employment contract for less than one hundred twenty (120) workdays. Those full-

time employees employed for less than four hundred forty (440) minutes per workday will accrue seniority on a prorated basis.

- 9.0203 Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, periods of time while an employee is on an approved unpaid leave of absence shall not count toward continuous full-time service, however, such leaves of absence will not be considered a termination of employment. With respect to STRS, any period of leave counted as FMLA leave will be treated as continued service (i.e., no break in service) for purposes of vesting and eligibility to participate.
- 9.0204 Persons who are certificated/licensed and who are employed by the Board outside the bargaining unit shall have seniority from their most recent date of hire by the Board for purposes of this Article IX in the event they are transferred by the Board to the bargaining unit and shall be listed on the appropriate certification/licensure seniority lists for purposes of this Article IX and shall have all rights provided to employees by this Article IX
- 9.0205 Employees who retire resign or otherwise terminate employment with the Board and who are then re-employed by the Board shall begin accumulating seniority from their most recent date of hire.
- 9.0206 In the case of identical seniority, the effective date of employment with the Board as indicated by the official Board hiring date will be used to resolve ties, except when documentation is available to indicate an employment commitment was made and a person was not recommended for hire at the next Board meeting due to scheduling or clerical problems. If official Board hiring dates are identical, the date and time of the employee signature on the employment commitment form will be used to determine seniority. Should all of the foregoing dates be identical, the employee with the most years of total service in education in the Winton Woods City School District shall be the employee with the most seniority. Should seniority dates still be identical, total service in education inside and outside the Winton Woods City School District shall be used to determine seniority. Substitute teaching and tutoring will not be considered as service in education inside or outside the Winton Woods City School District for seniority purposes.
- 9.0207 The Board shall compile a seniority list of employees with comparable evaluations for each certification/licensure type within a reasonable period of time for processing certification/licensure data after the data is received from each employee by October 15 of each school year. The names of employees who are certified/licensed for several certification/licensure types will appear on each such seniority list. Each list will show whether or not the employee is actively working in the certification/licensure type for that school year. It is each employee's individual responsibility to notify the Board by October 15 of each school

year of the types of certifications/licenses held and any changes in certification/licensure which the employee wants reflected on the current year's seniority lists. The Board must receive a copy of each certificate/license or endorsement within the time limits set forth herein and employees must complete any requested forms within the time limits

and employees must complete any requested forms within the time limits set forth herein in order to be listed on the seniority list for a certification/licensure type. Any new certifications submitted after October 15 of any school year will place the person at the bottom of the certification/licensure type list for the remainder of that school year. In subsequent school years the employee will be placed on the certification/licensure type seniority list in order of seniority as determined herein.

- 9.03 Employees who are to be suspended without pay under this Article will be notified of the suspension by certified mail or hand delivery as soon as possible.
- 9.04 An employee notified of the suspension of his/her contract without pay under this Article while actively working within a particular certification/licensure type, may displace the least senior employee actively working in another certification/licensure type, within the category of comparable evaluation or a category containing employees with lower final summative ratings as defined in this Article, provided the displacing employee is properly certified/licensed to replace the displaced employee and the displacing employee's name appears on the previously established seniority list for the displaced employee's certification/licensure type. Employees with limited contracts within a category will be displaced before employees within that category with continuing contracts. No employee with a limited contract may displace an employee with a continuing contract within his or her category.
- 9.05 When an employee is notified that his or her contract is to be suspended for Reduction in Force, any displacement rights that employee has must be exercised as follows:
  - A. The displacing employee has 10 (ten) work days after receipt of notice of contract suspension to make the election of displacement by notifying the Director of Human Resources in writing.
  - B. The Director of Human Resources will give the employee identified for displacement written notice of displacement by certified mail or personal service and a copy to the WWTA President.
  - C. A displaced employee has 10 (ten) work days after notice of displacement to make the election of displacement by notifying the Director of Human Resources in writing.
- 9.06 A recall list of suspended employees will be maintained by seniority within the comparable evaluation category according to certification/licensure types on file in the Board's office. When there is a vacant position or new job opening to be

filled, as determined by the Board within its sole and exclusive discretion, suspended employees who are certified/licensed to perform the work in that position will be recalled in the reverse order of reduction. Recall rights will be only to those types of certifications/licensures for which the suspended employee is duly certified/licensed. Notification of recall will be given by certified mail to the employee at the last address furnished to the Board or in person by hand delivery, except in those cases of emergency when a telephone call will be necessary, for example, in late August, after the opening of school, or in the event of an unexpected sudden vacancy.

- 9.07 A suspended employee who fails to respond to a written recall notice within ten (10) workdays after sending the notice of recall or within forty-eight (48) hours after personal notification by telephone will be deemed to have refused the position offered in the recall notice.
- 9.08 A suspended employee's name will remain on a recall list or lists for twenty-four (24) months after the effective date of a suspension unless the employee:
  - 9.0801 Waives seniority recall rights in writing;
  - 9.0802 Retires, resigns or otherwise terminates employment;
  - 9.0803 Fails to accept recall to a position in the certification/licensure type held immediately prior to suspension or to a position in another certification/licensure type for which the employee is certified/licensed;
  - 9.0804 After acceptance of recall, fails to report to work on the date specified in the recall notice, unless the employee is disabled and so notifies the Board's Superintendent or designee. A recalled employee who has secured employment elsewhere will be allowed a reasonable amount of time before being required to report to work provided the employee secures written agreement to that amount of time from the Board's Superintendent or designee. After an employee has been suspended for twenty-four (24) months his/her name will be removed from all recall lists and he/she shall not be eligible for recall and he/she shall be terminated from employment and all his/her employment contracts shall be terminated and he/she shall have no rights under this Agreement.
  - 9.0805 When a part-time position, defined for the purposes of this Agreement as a position for less than four hundred and forty (440) minutes per day, is offered to a bargaining unit member who has been suspended from a full-time position and is on the recall list the bargaining unit member may:
    - A. accept the part-time position but

- (1) will remain on the recall list for the balance of the twenty-four (24) month period during which time the teacher will be offered an additional part-time position in his/her area of certification/licensure if it does not conflict with the teacher's current schedule with the Winton Woods City School District or place the teacher into overtime; and
- (2) will be offered a full-time position in an appropriate area of certification/licensure if one becomes available during the summer between school years while the teacher is on the recall list.

## R. reject the part-time position but

- (1) will remain on the recall list for the balance of the twenty-four (24) month period during which time the teacher will be offered available part-time or full-time positions that may be available in the teacher's areas of certification/licensure; and
- (2) will be offered any full-time position that was initially offered as a part-time position, however, this offer will occur only during the summer between school years while the teacher is on the recall list. If such an offer is made, the Board may suspend a teaching contract pursuant to Article IX.
- 9.0806 When a part-time or full-time position does not require a teaching certificate/license by law, the Board shall not be required to recall teachers from the recall list. However, if the Board decides to fill a non-certificated/licensed part-time position with a new teacher who also has duties related to a teaching certificate/license, the part-time position must first be offered to a teacher on the recall list.
- 9.0807 The operation of these paragraphs shall not expand the maximum amount of time that a teacher shall remain on the recall list after a suspension of contract.
- 9. 0808 If a full-time teacher on recall is offered a full-time position in an area of his/her certification/licensure, the teacher shall be removed from the recall list.
- 9.0809 If a part-time teacher on recall is offered a part-time or full-time position in an area of his/her certification/licensure, the teacher shall be removed from the recall list.
- 9.0810 An employee who is suspended will not be eligible for leaves of absence. The effective date of a suspension is the last day of work for the Board. A suspended employee may continue life, dental and medical plan benefits by paying the entire amount of all contributions

and costs necessary to pay for such benefits and this option may be exercised only so long as payments are received by the date specified and in the manner specified by the Board's Treasurer, not to exceed a period of twenty-four (24) consecutive months from date of the employee's suspension, provided the employee is still on the recall list.

- 9.0811 After recall from suspension, an employee will receive only accumulated sick leave accrued up to the date of suspension. Upon recall from suspension, an employee will be placed on the salary schedule in accordance with years of service and training, but a recalled employee will not receive salary increment credit for the time while on suspension. Suspension time will not count toward any requirements for individual employee contract eligibility purposes or for years of continuous service for seniority purposes under this Article or any other purposes under this Agreement, but, suspension time will not be considered a termination of employment except as otherwise provided for herein.
- 9.0812 For purposes of reduction in force, all employees will be placed into categories using a rolling total score arrived at by adding the most recent three years of their final summative evaluation scores together.

Each year an employee is rated "Ineffective" he or she earns a score of 1.

Each year an employee is rated "Developing" he or she earns a score of 2.

Each year an employee is rated "Proficient" the employee earns a score of 3.

Each year an employee is rated "Accomplished" the employee earns a score of 4

Therefore, the highest possible total score is 12 and the lowest possible total score is 3.

Employees will be placed into categories as follows:

Category D consists of employee with a rolling total score of 3 but no more than 4.

Category C consists of employees with a rolling total score of more than 4 but no more than 7.

Category B consists of employees with a rolling total score of more than 7 but no more than 9.

Category A consists of employees with a rolling total score of more than 9 including 12.

Employees within category D within the affected area of licensure will be suspended first by seniority, with employees with limited contracts being suspended before employees with continuing contracts.

If this does not satisfy the needed reductions, the within employees within category C within the affected areas of licensure will be suspended next by seniority, with employees with limited contracts being suspended before employees with continuing contracts.

If this does not satisfy the needed reductions, the contracts of employees within category B within the affected areas of licensure will be suspended next by seniority, with employees with limited contracts being suspended before employees with continuing contracts.

If this does not satisfy the needed reductions, the contracts of employees within category A within the affected areas of licensure will be suspended next by seniority, with employees with limited contracts being suspended before employees with continuing contracts.

Employees new to the District will have a projected total score created using available Winton Woods' final summative ratings to compute the three year projected total score.

- 9.0813 The Association will be provided with a copy of the seniority list specified in Section 9.02307 at the time it is produced. In addition, in the event a reduction in force is approved by the Board, the Association will be provided with a copy of a seniority list in seniority order within the categories of comparable evaluations, indicating all licenses or certificates held and the current position held by each employee.
- 9.0814 The content of this Article IX shall be in effect only so long as required by Ohio law. Should Ohio law no longer require reduction in force to be based upon performance, and allow seniority be used without regard to performance the parties will meet in accordance with Article XVIII, Section 18.0601 to bargain the effects of the changes in the law.

# 9.17 SUBCONTRACTING

- 9.1701 The Board agrees that subcontracting may not be used to replace a member of the bargaining unit or to fill a vacant bargaining unit position unless the Board is unable to fill the position with a newly hired employee who is deemed qualified by the Board. The Board will provide substantiating evidence to the Association as to any and all efforts made to locate a qualified employee prior to subcontracting the position.
- 9.1702 Subcontracting may not be used if it will result in the layoff of bargaining unit members.

# ARTICLE X: WORKING CONDITIONS

## 10.01 CONTRACT YEAR

10.0101

Full-time employees shall have an individual employment contract year of one hundred eighty-five (185) workdays, except that newly hired employees shall have an individual employment contract year of one hundred eighty-eight (188) workdays so they may attend additional inservice training on three (3) workdays prior to the start of the student's school year, and except that employees may enter into individual employee limited supplemental contracts which extend the number of their workdays beyond the number specified herein. Teachers shall be compensated for up to eight (8) hours of documented time spent prior to the beginning of the school year preparing his/her classroom for the school year, using the form Appendix U. This compensation shall be at an hourly rate determined by the number of total hours documented and the amount of available funds but not to exceed the negotiated hourly rate, require documentation of the time spent, and subject to the funds available under 10.0203 (B).

10.0102

When an entire building is closed and/or the entire staff relocated, the students in the affected building(s) will be dismissed from the last scheduled student day of the school year prior to the closing and/or relocation in order to facilitate the move. The affected employees will also be released from one-half (1/2) in-service day at the beginning of the school year to allow one-half (1/2) paid workday for relocating.

# 10.02 WORK WEEK AND WORKDAYS

10.0201

All scheduled workdays shall be during the work week of Monday through Friday, exclusive of scheduled holidays, except that workdays may be scheduled by the Superintendent or designee on Saturdays and non-Sunday holidays in the event more than the number of calamity days allowed by statute have been exhausted or in order for the Board to meet any State minimum educational standards. The Board will endeavor to publish in advance such days on the Board adopted school calendar.

10.0202

The normal employee workday shall not exceed four hundred forty (440) minutes each workday, including a one-half (1/2) hour lunch period in which he/she shall not be required to perform any school activity except:

A. The normal workday may be lengthened by the Board or its designees, either no earlier than seventy (70) minutes prior to the beginning of the student day or no later than seventy (70) minutes after the end of the student day, for a total of nine (9) building faculty meetings in each school building during each school year for

- each employee, which will not exceed sixty (60) minutes per meeting, and which employees may be compelled to attend except if excused by the Board or its designees for just cause.
- B. The normal workday for employees who have been employed by the Board for less than one (1) full individual employment contract year may be lengthened by the Board or its designees for five (5) in-service training meetings, which will not exceed sixty (60) minutes per meeting, and which employees may be compelled to attend except if excused by the Board or its designees for just cause.
- C. The normal workday may be lengthened by the Board or its designee for open house and one (1) other similar meeting, which will not exceed two (2) hours and thirty (30) minutes each, and which employees may be compelled to attend except if excused by the Board or its designees for just cause. In case of employees assigned to multiple schools, required attendance shall not exceed two (2) hours and thirty (30) minutes for open house and two (2) hours and thirty (30) minutes for one (1) other similar meeting.
- D. The normal workday may be lengthened by the Board or its designees for in-service meetings and grade level, department, subject area or employee team meetings not to exceed nine (9) meetings for each employee during each school year, seven (7) of which will not exceed sixty (60) minutes per meeting, and the remaining two (2) meetings shall not exceed ninety (90) minutes per meeting, and which employees may be compelled to attend, except if excused by the Board or its designees for just cause.
- E. The normal workday may be lengthened by the Board or its designees for student and/or parent conferences with employees when requested by a student and/or parent which employees may be compelled to attend except if excused by the Board or its designees for just cause, and such conferences shall be held at mutually agreed upon times immediately before or after the student day if possible or within seventy-two (72) hours of the employee being notified of the request.
- F. The normal workday may be lengthened by the Board or its designee in the event unanticipated extenuating circumstances would jeopardize the health and/or safety of students and employees may be compelled to work during the lengthened workday except if excused by the Board or its designees for just cause.

COBBOTTO BIROTHING NORMANDINE STILL FOR EAST 2010 THROUGH SUIL SUI, 2020

- G. The normal workday may be lengthened by the Board or its designees in the event an employee accepts additional duties under an individual limited supplemental employment contract. Employees shall have their workday extended twice a year for scheduled district wide parent/teacher conferences. These conferences are usually held once in the fall and once in the second semester. In return, teachers will not be required to report to work the Wednesday prior to Thanksgiving.
- H. The normal workday may be lengthened by the Board or its designees by mutual agreement with any employee.
- I. Employees shall have sixty (60) days notice prior to attendance at any compulsory event.
- J. Teachers not already receiving supplemental pay shall be compensated at the curriculum rate of pay for a minimum of 3 hours if required to attend a weekend community engagement event such as the Night of Freedom and/or Fine Arts Fair. Should such event(s) occur on a weekday, no such compensation shall be paid unless such time constitutes excess hours outside of the school day consistent with Section 10.0203. Such time shall be calculated based on the start and end time of the event with one hour of travel time.
- 10.0203 A. Employees shall use the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as Appendix L, to keep a record of the amount of time, which is otherwise uncompensated, spent in meetings outside the normal workday which fall into one of the following categories:
  - (1) E.T.M. Evaluation Team Meeting
  - (2) 504 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
  - (3) IEP Individual Education Program
  - (4) Program Review
  - (5) RTI-Response to Intervention Team
  - (6) CIP Continuous Improvement Plan, including High Schools That Work (limited to two (2) hours per month)
  - (7) Parent Initiated conferences arranged through the school office
  - (8) Manifestation Meeting
  - (9) Financial Aid Night (Payable only to Counselors)
  - (10) Post-Secondary Options Night (Payable only to Counselors)
  - (11) College Fair (Payable only to Counselors)
  - (12) Fall College Meeting for Seniors (Payable only to Counselors)
  - (13) Freshman Orientation (Payable only to Counselors)
  - (14) Extra Scheduling Night (Payable only to Counselors)
  - (15) Senior Honors Night (Payable only to Counselors)

- (16) Eighth Grade Parent Night (Payable only to Counselors)
- (17) Night of Freedom and/or Fine Arts Fair (payable as defined in 10.0202)
- B. The amount of \$22,500 will be available to compensate employees attending the meetings in 10.0203(A) outside of the normal employee workday and the time documented under 10.0101. One-third (1/3) of the available money will be used for 10.0203 (A) and two-thirds (2/3) of the money for 10.0101.
- C. In each school year of this Agreement, the applicable amount will be reported and paid in two (2) installments. The first installment report (Appendix L) will reflect time spent in those meetings listed in section 10.0203 (A) that are outside of the normal employee workday through March 15 of the school year. This report is to be submitted by March 22 to the building principal (or supervisor, if not assigned to one building) and shall reflect the time in increments of fifteen (15) minutes. The second installment report (Appendix L) will reflect time spent in those meetings listed in section 10.0203 that are outside of the normal employee workday through the last teacher workday of the school year. After receiving each report, the principal or supervisor shall forward the information submitted to the treasurer's office for payment. Payment based upon the first installment report shall occur in the month of April. Payment based upon the second installment report shall occur by August 15 of that year.
- D. Employees (classroom teachers and counselors) who have time reports submitted that reflect in excess of four (4) uncompensated hours spent in the meetings listed in 10.0203(A) outside the normal workday shall be paid \$16.00 per hour for every hour in excess of four (4) hours. If the aggregate amount to be paid exceeds the amount set aside for that year, as specified in 10.0203(B), the total number of hours to be paid will be divided by the total funds set aside, to arrive at a rate per hour that will be paid uniformly for all excess hours. In no case will the total of all payments exceed the total amount set aside for this purpose.
- If the Board or its designee close a school on a normal employee workday, affected employees will receive pay for the day the school is closed, and if the Board or its designees delay the start of a normal employee workday, affected employees will receive pay for the period of the delay, but in no event shall employees receive pay for, nor be required to work in excess of, one hundred eighty-five (185) workdays in any individual employment contract year or, for newly hired employees, in no event shall they receive pay for, nor be required to work in excess of, one hundred eighty-eight (188) workdays in an individual employment contract

year, except that any employee may work in excess of said workdays under any individual employee limited supplemental employment contract.

10.0205

After an employee reports to work at the start of his/her workday, no employee shall leave his/her school building before the end of the employee's workday without the specific authorization of the employee's immediate supervisor or designee, except employees may leave the school building during their one-half (1/2) hour lunch periods after giving notice of leaving to their immediate supervisor or designee. The schedule for each full-time employee shall include thirty (30) minutes of duty-free lunch during each workday.

10.0206

Classroom observations by non-administrative personnel must be scheduled in advance with the bargaining unit member for visits over 15 minutes. The observations will be scheduled with a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours notice; provided, however, the notice can be waived if the bargaining unit members so choose. All non-administrative personnel shall complete a "Request for Classroom Observation Form" (Appendix O) and comply with the administrative guidelines for the <u>Conduct of Visitors to School Property</u>; available from the office of the Executive Director of Human Resources.

10.0207

The Board will grant one full unencumbered day for record keeping at the end of the school year. Additionally, the Board will grant two one-half days (three hours and twenty-five minutes) each of unencumbered record keeping time. Grades will not be due before the conclusion of the record keeping time.

10.0208

The provision contained in this Section, 10.0208, are governed by a MOU between the Association and the Board effective June 29, 2016 through June 30, 2018, and are as follows: The Board may require employees to attend professional development outside of the contract year/work day without pay so long as a minimum of one month's notice provided in advance of the professional development; the Board assumes the registration cost, if any, for the professional development; the professional development is required in order for the employee to perform his/her job satisfactorily. Employees shall be held responsible for the content covered in any required professional development regardless of whether the employee attended the professional development or not so long as the above criterion is met.

10.0209

There shall be one month's notice of any mandatory professional development that is to be scheduled outside of the work day/contract year. Notice must be given during the contract year for mandatory professional development. The Board shall limit professional development outside of the contract/year to two days per year.

- There shall be an hour paid lunch provided to each bargaining unit member during any District sponsored full professional development day during the contract year. Exceptions may occasionally occur (e.g., trainer availability requires a shorter break).
- 10.0211 When a professional development day is held at the District's separate buildings respectively, the time for training shall be the normal start time for each building. If a professional development day included the District's buildings together, the start of the day will be 8:00 a.m. to 3:20 p.m., with a one-hour lunch time extended work day.

# 10.03 PLANNING PERIODS

10.0301

Under the current seven (7) hour student day, the schedule for each fulltime elementary school classroom employee (an employee assigned to a building serving students in any configuration of grades Pre-K through 6) shall include two hundred and forty-five (245) minutes during the and during the student day for employee planning periods as scheduled by the employees' immediate supervisor or designee, except when unusual circumstances necessitate not scheduling that day's planning period. "Unusual circumstances" does not mean situations that reoccur with some regularity and/or are known well in advance such as field days, assemblies, shortened days, or district-wide professional development. Planning periods may be used to proctor/administer required assessments to students. In the event that it becomes necessary to use teacher planning time for more than one school week in order to administer required assessments, Administration will schedule make up planning time as soon as practical (e.g., during student exam period). Art, music and physical education employees traveling between school buildings during the same workday may have their planning periods scheduled at the beginning or end of their workday. The Association acknowledges that during days with a late start, early release, waiver days, or other districtwide professional development days, planning periods may be shortened, based on an equitable schedule.

10.0302

The schedule for each full-time middle and secondary school classroom employee shall include one (1) employee planning period (equivalent to the length of one [1] class period scheduled that day) during the employee work day as scheduled by the employee's immediate supervisor or designee, except when unusual circumstances necessitate not scheduling that day's planning period, and except art, music and physical education employees traveling between school buildings during the same workday may have their planning periods scheduled at the beginning or end of their workday.

10.0303

Conferences with parents of students arranged by counselors or administrative staff during employee planning periods shall only be scheduled after consultation with the employee. Conferences shall be

scheduled with twenty-four (24) hours notice unless there is mutual agreement to hold the requested conference earlier.

10.0304

Employees shall use their planning periods for preparation of their classroom teaching time, Board required recordkeeping time, and meetings with parents of students or students and grading students' performance and such other school related work as may be assigned or approved by the employee's immediate supervisor or designee. The Board and/or Administration shall endeavor to provide a teacher twenty-four (24) hours notice for "other school related work" assignments. Planning periods may be used to proctor/administer required assessments to students. In the event that it becomes necessary to use teacher planning time for more than one school week in order to administer required assessments, Administration will schedule make up planning time as soon as practical (e.g., during student exam period).

10.0305

Teachers may volunteer to substitute during their planning period, and they will be paid the contractual hourly rate if they volunteer. The minimum payment will be one (1) hour's pay at the contractual hourly rate. If schedules change so that daily planning time exceeds a one (1) hour period, a teacher who substitutes during a planning period of between one (1) and one and one half (1  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) hours will receive one and one half (1  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) hour's pay, and the teacher who substitutes during a planning period of between one and one half (1  $\frac{1}{2}$ ) and two (2) hours will receive two (2) hours pay.

For employees who receive additional students due to another teacher's absence, these members shall receive internal substitution pay at the daily rate divided by the number of teachers receiving students. This proposal shall only apply to K-2. The internal sub pay shall only be paid if a teacher receives three (3) or more students. Said teacher shall be paid twenty-five dollars (\$25) for half the day (3.5 hours) or fifty dollars (\$50) for the whole day. These payments are per teacher.

#### 10.04 COMPLAINTS ABOUT EMPLOYEES

In the event a complaint is lodged against an employee, the employee will be provided timely notice of the complaint. An employee who is the subject of a complaint from an individual or group of individuals outside the employment of the Board may request a conference with his/her building principal and/or the person who received said complaint and the individual or group of individuals filing said complaint. When a complaint is lodged and the complainant(s) refuse(s) to talk with the employee, the complaint will not go into the employee's personnel file unless the principal has substantiated the complaint through other investigative activities. The employee will be provided written notice of the principal's intent to place said complaint in the personnel file prior to placement. An employee has the right to Association representation at a conference with an individual or group of individuals to discuss said complaint.

## 10.05 SCHOOL CALENDAR

- The Superintendent and/or designee shall consult with the Association President and Association representatives prior to developing the school calendar and prior to modifying an existing school calendar. The Association may make written or oral comments to the Superintendent or make a presentation to the Board at the time the Superintendent's school calendar recommendation is presented to the Board for decision.
- 10.0502 Prior to the adoption of (a) school calendar(s), the Superintendent or designee shall send copies of possible school calendar(s) recommendations and alternatives for the succeeding school year to the Association President for input.
- 10.0503 The Superintendent will attempt to make a recommendation to the Board for a school calendar for the succeeding school year at the Board's regularly scheduled February meeting.

#### 10.06 PERSONNEL FILES

- 10.0601 All employee personnel files are available and open to employees. These files include the central office personnel file and the personnel file in the building principal's office.
- An employee shall have the right to view the contents of his/her personnel file at the central office with the exception of pre-employment information, specifically references. Requests to view the central office file shall be made to the office of Human Resources. The central office file will be reviewed in the presence of a Board administrator or designee. A request to view the personnel file in the building shall be made to the building principal or designee and will be reviewed in the presence of the building principal or designee.
- 10.0603 Administrators will provide employees with copies of items in the personnel files upon request, within a reasonable length of time.
- An employee will be notified of items placed in the personnel file(s) that pertain to the employee's performance and/or employment status. Formal appraisal instruments and any records of reprimands placed in the employee's personnel file shall be with the knowledge of the employee who shall signify such knowledge by signing the document. An employee may place in his/her personnel file anecdotal records, rebuttal or supporting information at the same time the original material is placed in his/her personnel file or at a later time; if a reply, said reply shall be attached to the corresponding original material. Anonymous letters and/or material shall not be placed in an employee's personnel file nor shall such letters and/or material be made a matter of record.

10.0605 All employees shall be provided with rights and privileges in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code 1347.

## 10.07 EXISTING PERMANENT VACANCIES AND NEWLY ESTABLISHED POSITIONS

- During the students' school year, a notice of a newly established permanent position or a permanent vacancy in an existing position requiring certification, including positions not within the bargaining unit as defined in Section 1.02 of this Agreement, shall be posted **electronically** for at least five (5) working days prior to filling the position.
- 10.0702 Employees must file professional interest forms to be considered for any newly established permanent position and any permanent vacancy in an existing position no later than five (5) working days after the position is posted in accordance with Section 10.0701 above. The office of Human Resources will acknowledge receipt of professional interest forms.
- 10.0703 The Executive Director of Human Resources will attempt to notify all employees who have a professional interest form on file for a permanent vacancy or permanent newly established vacancy when the position becomes open during the summer months by e-mail five (5) calendar days prior to the position being filled so the employees may request an interview.
- The Executive Director of Human Resources shall give consideration to every employee who completes a professional interest form for any existing permanent vacancies or newly established permanent positions. Any employee may request an interview. However, any employee who has been involuntarily transferred due to a consolidation or school closing will be interviewed. Each considered employee will be told the results of the selection process as it relates to his/her own candidacy for any permanent existing vacancy or newly established permanent position.
- 10.0705 An employee may express an interest in possible future newly established permanent positions or permanent vacancies in existing positions by submitting a professional interest form specifying the area of interest when the title of a possible position or vacancy is not known.

# 10.08 SAFETY AND HEALTH

- 10.0801 The Board shall provide employees with a safe and healthy place to work in accordance with applicable law, including OAC 3301-35-05(B) (5). The parties agree that any allegations regarding health or safety issues shall be handled in the following manner:
  - A. In an effort to resolve all complaints internally, the Board and/or Administration will first be notified of any complaint and have at least five (5) business days to resolve the complaint.

- B. If the complaint has not been satisfactorily resolved after the initial five (5) day period, the Association or an individual bargaining unit member may file a complaint with the Ohio Department of Industrial Relations.
- C. Any bargaining unit member who reasonably believes a condition presents an imminent danger of death or serious harm to the bargaining unit member will immediately notify his/her supervisor of the condition. The bargaining unit member may be temporarily reassigned while the condition is being investigated and/or corrected. If the bargaining unit member continues to be assigned to work under such condition, the bargaining unit member may refuse to work under Section 4167.06 of the Ohio Revised Code.
- D. A bargaining unit member who wishes to assert a claim of discrimination/discharge as defined in Chapter 4167.13 of the Ohio Revised Code shall use the grievance procedure in this contract as the means for asserting such a claim.
- Any concerns regarding the classroom/building physical environment or cleanliness should be put in writing on the appropriate form to the building principal. (See Appendix P.) The principal/designees in turn will write a work order in a reasonable amount of time, if appropriate, for building repairs or relay to the Executive Director of Accountability and Business Affairs other areas of concern.
- 10.0803 If there is no electricity or water in a building for over sixty (60) minutes and there is no indication that the condition will be resolved, the emergency dismissal procedures shall be followed.
- 10.0804 The concerns of the staff about room temperatures in the various classrooms will be addressed by the Board-Association Committee.
- 10.0805 The Board shall establish consistent District procedures for emergency/crisis situations. The administration shall annually review these procedures with employees and provide a copy to each employee at the opening staff meeting in each building.

#### 10.09 TEACHER EDUCATION STUDENTS

Teacher education students shall be assigned by the Executive Director of Human Resources to approved and qualified employee volunteers. Failure to volunteer for teacher education students shall not be a reason for a negative evaluation of an employee. All written information regarding university/college expectations for teacher education students' activities that is available to the Board will be provided to all employees to assist them in deciding whether to volunteer for the assignment of a teacher education student.

# 10.10 STUDENT HEALTH RECORDS

The Board shall provide employees with a list of students in their building(s) with known special medical problems by October 15. The Board's student medical records along with emergency medical procedures, if any, shall be provided for affected employees on a need-to-know basis, and employees shall hold all information in a student's medical records in confidence.

## 10.11 ASSIGNMENTS

- 10.1101 At the annual interview of each employee with the building principal/designee or immediate supervisor, which shall be held no later than April 1 of each year, each employee shall discuss with the building principal/designee or immediate supervisor, his/her grade level, course/subject and building assignment preferences for the following school year. No later than March 1, a form (see Appendix T) will be provided at each level for each employee to submit information as to preferences regarding academic assignments, extra-duty assignments and any other information that would be helpful in the scheduling process. The appropriate salary schedule will be printed on the reverse of that form.
- 10.1102 Tentative grade level, course/subject and building assignments for the following school year shall be made by the Superintendent or designee by written notice to each employee by the end of the current school year, and any changes in such tentative assignments or in subsequent assignments shall be made by the Superintendent or designee by written notice with reason(s) to each employee as soon as the Superintendent knows of its necessity.
- 10.1103 When assignment changes are made fifteen (15) calendar days or less prior to the start of the school year, or after the beginning of the school year, the affected employee will be given fourteen (14) hours of pay at the current home instructor hourly rate set forth in Section 12.05 of this Agreement.
- 10.1104 Each employee notified of an involuntary assignment shall have the right to request a conference with the Executive Director of Human Resources to discuss said assignment and shall have the right to Association representation at the conference.
- 10.1105 In grades 7 through 12, the Board will endeavor to limit the number of different preparations in the math, science, social studies and English assignments to three (3) per day.
- 10.1106 The Board/Administration will endeavor to limit the number of individual changes in class preparations from year to year in grades 7 through 12.

10.1107 In grades 7 through 12, the Board/Administration will endeavor to limit the number of classroom changes an individual teacher will make per day of instruction. Consideration to limit the number of classroom changes will be given to those teachers who had three (3) or more classroom changes in the prior school year.

- 10.1108 Non-teaching assignments will be distributed on a rotating basis whenever possible.
- 10.1109 The Superintendent or designee shall have the right to make all final decisions on employee non-teaching, grade level, course/subject and building assignments and such assignments shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure of this Agreement.

## 10.12 SUMMER SCHOOL JOB POSITIONS

- 10.1201 Summer school job positions requiring certification/licensure shall be posted in each school building in the main office and the central office for at least three (3) working days prior to filling the position.
- 10.1202 Employee applications for summer school job positions shall be filed with the Superintendent no later than three (3) working days after the position is posted in accordance with 10.1201 above. Employee applications shall be made on forms printed by the Board and such forms shall be available in the main office of each school building.
- 10.1203 Employees with proper certification/licensure for summer school job positions shall be hired for those positions before any persons outside the bargaining unit are hired for the positions.
- 10.1204 Employees shall be paid for summer school work in two (2) installments with the first installment paid on the first regularly scheduled pay day following completion of the first half of summer school and the second installment paid on the first regularly scheduled pay day following completion of the second half of summer school. The payment will be made in checks separate from other paychecks.

#### 10.13 CLASS SIZE

10.1301 In Kindergarten, the classes shall not exceed twenty-three (23). In Grades 1 through 6, if a grade level in one (1) building exceeds multiples of the numbers listed below, each teacher who is assigned a class that exceeds the appropriate number of students will be compensated in accordance with Section 10.1303 D. below.

Grades 1 and 2----- 24 Grades 3, 4, 5 and 6----- 29

- A. This determination shall occur at the end of the first two (2) weeks of each semester.
- B. Class size at any grade level (1 through 6) in any building will not exceed multiples of thirty (30) unless the affected teacher requests additional students.
- C. Students who are listed on an elementary teacher's (a teacher in a building serving students in any configuration of grades Pre-K through 6) roster but not physically in the class for <u>any</u> instruction shall not be included in the class size count.
- 10.1302 In the secondary schools (grades 7 through 12), the Board will endeavor to maintain a maximum of thirty (30) students per class.
- 10.1303 Nothing contained in 10.1301 and 10.1302 shall apply to special education, music, physical education and health classes. If class size exceeds the contractual limit and other options are not available to remedy the overage, at the option of the affected teacher(s) at the end of the first two (2) weeks of each semester, Administration shall advertise to hire additional staff by the end of the business day. In addition:
  - A. Administration shall have thirty school days from the end of the first two weeks of each semester to hire additional staff.
  - B. The Association shall hold the Board harmless for any class size overages that occur during this time frame so long as the Board acts in good faith to remedy the situation.
  - C. The Association President shall be given weekly updates of the status of efforts to address class size overages.
  - D. If additional staff is not hired after the thirty school day grace period and class size continues to exceed the contractual limit, affected teachers shall be paid retroactive to end of the first two weeks of the semester while Administration actively continues to remedy the overage. The rate of compensation shall be as follows:

per diem/per minute rate x number of actual classroom time x teaching days (excluding sick leave/personal leave days in excess of ten (10) consecutive days) divided by number of students in 10.1301 x number of students included in the overage.

E. The Association and Administration agree there shall be no compensation due if class size overage(s) occur(s) after the end of the first two weeks of each semester. However, the Board will

\_\_\_\_\_\_

endeavor to remedy any class size overages which occur after the first two weeks of each semester consistent with the best interest of students.

- F. Any compensation due to teachers will be paid at the end of the semester.
- In the high school and middle school (grades 7 through 12), under no circumstances after the first full week in October of each school year will the total academic class load per employee exceed one hundred fifty-five (155) students if teaching five (5) assigned bells of classes per day, or one hundred seventy (170) students if the employee agrees to teach six (6) assigned bells of classes per day.
- 10.1305 The concerns of employees about supervising students in excess of their normal assignment shall be addressed by the Board-Association Committee.
- The Board-Association Committee shall address the issue of class sizes where the class size in music, physical education and health classes exceed the endeavored class size number, or where special education resource rooms exceed the numbers in the Operating Standards for Ohio Schools Service Children with Disabilities.
- In the high school and middle school (grades 7 through 12), all employees may be required to teach six (6) bells per day so long as the total academic class load does not exceed one hundred and fifty (150) students in an eight (8) bell day. Administration shall endeavor to limit class size to twenty seven (27) students per bell. Administration will limit class size to thirty five students per teacher in health, wellness, physical education and music classes. State limits are in effect for special education classes.
  - a. No teacher teaching six (6) bells shall have more than three(3) preps per day.
  - b. After school help sessions do not qualify as a "teaching bell"
  - c. Facilitators will not be scheduled for after school help sessions.
  - d. If a teacher believes there is an issues with the class load or bell schedule, the teacher may filed the WWCSD Six Bell Complaint Form in Appendix V with the boiling administrator.
    - i. Within three (3) days of submission of the form, there will be a meeting with the teacher. The teacher and the administrator will investigate and work together to rectify the situation if possible. They will document that he meeting occurred using the WWCSD Six Bell Complaint Form.
    - ii. If the issue of class load or bell schedule cannot be corrected, the affected teacher schedule and class

\_\_\_\_\_\_

load shall be modified to comply with Articles 10.1105, 10.1302 and 10.304 above.

## 10.14 STUDENTS IDENTIFIED WITH DISABILITIES

- 10.1401 Students with disabilities will be scheduled consistent with how typical students are scheduled district-wide unless the student's IEP requires otherwise.
- 10.1402 District-wide, intervention specialists and/or the special education facilitator shall have the opportunity to collaborate with administration prior to the first day of school during the scheduling process about the placement of special education students on their case load.
- 10.1403 Class lists provided to teachers will indicate which students in their classes are identified as having special needs and require special education services. Such lists will be treated as confidential.
- 10.1404 If working conditions under the above process create a hardship, an unworkable class situation, or serious concern for the success of students, affected employees shall document in writing the concerns and submit them to the building special education advisory team. The building special education advisory team shall consist of the building advisory committee with members added if needed to ensure that two intervention specialists serve on the committee for this purpose. The building principal and/or the special education advisory team may invite the Director of Student Services and/or the building special education supervisor to any meeting where concerns are to be addressed.

#### 10.1405 Collaboration

- A. The parties recognize that collaboration activities for special education and regular education staff are important. Collaboration for special education teachers and regular classroom teachers serving the same student could include but is not limited to:
  - (1) Written communication
  - (2) Common planning time
  - (3) In-service
  - (4) Faculty meetings
  - (5) Scheduled staffing
- B. Additionally, administrators will endeavor to provide a common staffing time for special education and regular education teachers to meet for collaboration.

\_\_\_\_\_

# 10.15 STUDENT DISCIPLINE

The Board Agrees that the administration will support teachers by enforcing the Board adopted Student Discipline Code of Conduct.

- 10.1501 Each building will develop a system for tracking the number of discipline referrals written about a student. This information will be recorded on a uniform Board provided referral form in the space provided.
- 10.1502 Administrative disciplinary action for students identified with disabilities must comply with state and federal law.

# 10.16 DEPARTMENT FACILITATOR (7-12)

There shall be created the position of Department Facilitator (7-12) for the subject areas of Music and Foreign Language. These positions will be paid on a supplemental contract and placed in Group 4 of the Supplemental Salary Schedule.

There shall be created the positions of Department Facilitator High School and Department Facilitator Middle School for the core academic subject areas of Language Arts, Mathematics, Science, and Social Studies, plus Special Education. These positions will be paid on a supplemental contract and will split the salary specified in Group 4 of the Supplemental Salary Schedule with 1/3 of the salary paid to the Middle School Facilitator and 2/3 of the salary paid to the High School facilitator. Additionally, the position of Department Facilitator shall be provided a duty bell during the school day for the purpose of performing duties associated with the position and granted five (5) days extended service pay according to Section 12.04 Extended Service Pay of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE XI: LEAVES OF ABSENCE

## 11.01 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

Leaves taken under this Article which qualify as leave available under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FLMA) shall be charged against the twelve (12) weeks of leave available under the Act. The approved Board policy implementing the FMLA shall be included in the Teacher Handbook and distributed annually to all bargaining unit members.

## 11.02 PAID AND UNPAID PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE

- All employees shall earn a minimum of three (3) personal business leave days for each school year of employment with the Board. These days shall be granted as paid days of absence for the observance of religious holidays that require total abstinence from work or for personal business that is not under the control of the employee and that cannot be conducted at a time other than on an employee's workday and during an employee's work time, or for substitution for unpaid FMLA leave. Fractional days must be used when the absence does not require a full day's absence, except when paid personal business leave is substituted for unpaid FMLA leave. No paid or unpaid personal business leave shall be deducted from an employee's accumulated sick leave reserve.
- An application for paid personal business leave shall be made to the employee's immediate supervisor at least three (3) days in advance of the leave day on the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as Appendix C. The requirement of advance notice shall be waived by the immediate supervisor because of emergency conditions that prevent the giving of advance notice.
- 11.0203 For good and sufficient reason(s) approved by the Superintendent or designee, personal business leave with pay or without pay may be approved beyond the limitations set forth in Section 11.0201 above. A letter from the employee outlining the extreme extenuating circumstances must be presented to the Superintendent or designee for advance written approval of personal business leave with pay or without pay which is beyond the limitations set forth in Section 11.0201 above, except the requirement of advance notice shall be waived by the Superintendent or designee because of emergency conditions that prevent the giving of advance notice.
- An employee's failure to follow the procedures of this Article or an employee's use of personal business leave for reasons other than those specified in Section 11.0201 or Section 11.0203 above, shall constitute a

willful violation of this Agreement by the employee and shall constitute just cause for disciplinary action.

11.0205

Employees will be credited with paid or unpaid personal business leave time for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule, seniority or length of service, paid personal leave, and paid sick leave accumulation. The Board shall not be obligated to pay any insurance premium costs on behalf of employees on unpaid personal business leave, except that when such leave is counted toward the employee's FMLA leave entitlement, the Board shall pay its share of health insurance premiums, but only to the extent that the FMLA requires the Board to do so; and except that the Board shall pay its share of insurance premium costs for the insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, for an employee on unpaid personal business leave for the remainder of the month during which the employee commences the leave. An employee granted unpaid personal business leave may elect to continue the insurance benefits as specified in this Agreement, during the period of the leave, by employee payment of the entire premium costs for such Employee checks for insurance coverage shall be made payable to the respective carriers and given to the Board's Treasurer or designee by the first (1st) day of each month for which the employee elects insurance coverage.

11.0206

Personal business leave days remaining unused at the end of the school year, will be added to the member's sick leave balance and reflected in the first pay check in July.

## 11.03 PAID SICK LEAVE

11.0301

Paid sick leave of one and one-fourth (1½) days per month of employment with the Board, effective on the last day of each month, shall accumulate up to fifteen (15) days per year for each employee, in accordance with Section 11.0307 below. All unused days of accumulated sick leave shall be added at the end of each month to an employee's sick leave reserve. Sick leave shall accumulate and be added to each employee's sick leave reserve without any limit. New employees hired after July 1, 2 016, shall have sick leave accumulation capped at 280 days.

11.0302

The Board's Treasurer is authorized to advance five (5) days of paid sick leave each school year to those employees who have exhausted their accumulated sick leave or who are newly hired and have not accumulated any paid sick leave, but the number of days advanced cannot be greater than the number the employee will accumulate during the remainder of that school year.

11.0303

Accumulated paid sick leave shall be paid after an employee submits an application for paid sick leave days which is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Appendix D for the following reasons:

- A. For absence of the employee due to personal illness, pregnancy, adoption of a child, injury or exposure to contagious diseases which could be communicated to other employees or students. In the case of adoption, sick leave shall not exceed six (6) weeks.
- B. For absence of the employee due to illness of someone in the employee's immediate family. Immediate family is defined as mother, father, sister, brother, son, daughter, husband, wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparents, great grandparents, grandchildren, aunts, uncles, nieces, nephews, adopted children, adoptive parents, step-parents, foster parents/children and legal guardians/wards. Any other special circumstances that may not meet this definition can be submitted by the employee to the Superintendent, his/her designee, or the employee's building principal or supervisor for approval.
- C. For absence due to death in the immediate family of an employee. Immediate family is defined in Section 11.0303(B) above. Absence under this paragraph (C) shall not exceed five (5) days during each school year, except absences exceeding five (5) days may be approved by the Superintendent or designee.
- D. For substitution of unpaid FMLA leave.
- 11.0304 Fractional sick leave days must be used when the necessary absence as defined above does not require a full day's absence, except when sick leave is substituted for unpaid FMLA leave.
- 11.0305 An employee's failure to follow the procedures of this Article or an employee's use of paid sick leave days for reasons other than those specified in this Section 11.0303 shall constitute just cause for disciplinary action.
- 11.0306 Employees will be credited with time spent on paid sick leave days for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule, seniority or length of service, paid personal business leave, paid sick leave accumulation and Board paid insurance premium costs.
- 11.0307 Employees shall accumulate and be charged with the use of paid sick leave under this Section 11.03 in accordance with the following schedule:

Work Hours Regularly			
Scheduled	Days Earned	Days Earned	Charged For Each
Per Week	Per Month	Per Year	Day Absent
at least 5	.21	2.52	.17
at least 10	.42	5.04	.33
at least 15	.63	7.56	.50
at least 20	.83	9.96	.67
at least 25	1.04	12.48	.83
at least 30	1.25	15.00	1.00

## 11.04 SICK LEAVE BANK

The purpose of the Voluntary Sick Bank (hereinafter referred to as the "Bank") is to provide sick leave to contributors to the Bank after their accumulated sick leave and any available advance of sick leave days has been exhausted, and more specifically to provide such leave from the Bank in cases of catastrophic illnesses or injuries. The Bank rules and guidelines are as follows:

#### 11.0401 COMMITTEE

- A. The Bank will be operated on a voluntary basis. A committee shall be formed to administer the Bank and to provide the information to the Board Treasurer's office. This committee shall be empowered to adopt rules and regulations and to make decisions required to administer the Bank, so long as those rules, regulations and decisions do not modify the agreement contained herein. This committee will be titled the "Voluntary Sick Bank Committee" (hereinafter referred to as the "SBC"). The SBC shall be composed of the following.
  - (1) The Superintendent or his/her designee.
  - (2) The Association President or his/her designee.
  - (3) Two (2) bargaining units members appointed by the Association President.
  - (4) At the Superintendent's discretion, he/she may appoint one (1) additional administrator.
- B. Should a vacancy occur on the SBC, a replacement for the vacant positions shall be appointed by the authority making the original appointment.
- C. One (1) of the three (3) bargaining unit SBC representatives will be selected to act as chairperson of the SBC. The Association President will designate the chairperson prior to the first meeting of the SBC.

D. The SBC will be responsible for developing the forms needed to operate the Bank.

## 11.0402 ENROLLMENT

Enrollment in the Bank will begin on April 1 for the preceding school year and end December 31 of the current school year, or only during the first four (4) weeks following the first day of employment for any bargaining unit member employed after December 31.

# 11.0403 <u>MEMBERSHIP</u>

The Bank shall be established for all bargaining unit members of the District who indicate their desire to participate by contributing the individually required number of days as indicated in Section 11.0404C.

## 11.0404 GUIDELINES

The Bank shall be administered by the SBC in accordance with the following provisions:

- A. The Bank may be used only by an individual contributor for his/her catastrophic illnesses or injuries.
- B. Days from the Bank may be used only for those workdays that the individual contributor is employed under a Regular Teacher Contract (limited or continuing).
- C. Any employee desiring to participate in the Bank will initially donate one (1) day of his/her accumulated sick leave to the Bank. Additional days may be requested by the SBC as required by subsection D of this section.
- D. If the number of days in the Bank falls below fifteen (15) days prior to May 31 of any year, each participant will be required to donate one (1) additional day of his/her accumulated sick leave to the Bank. If an employee has used all his/her sick leave, the additional day will be donated as soon as new sick leave is granted. The SBC is responsible for notifying members of each donation.
- E. All days once donated to the Bank become the property of the Bank and will not be returned in the event an employee withdraws his/her participation in the Bank.
- F. The maximum dollar expenditure during each school year is \$20,000 based on the per diem of the person using the sick leave bank.
- G. All requests to receive grants from the Bank must be submitted in writing to the SBC on the prescribed form. The earliest effective date shall be the date that the form is received by the SBC.
- H. Any employee submitting a request to use the Bank must have made his/her proper contribution and met all eligibility

- requirements. If an employee is physically unable to submit the form, the forms may be submitted by a proxy.
- I. An employee can apply prior to using all his/her days, but will not be able to use days from the Bank until his/her own accumulated and advanced sick leave is depleted.
- J. Days granted from the Bank can only be used for extended illness or disability. (The SBC will generally consider an extended illness one that involves ten (10) or more working days.)
- K. Periodic reviews by the SBC of all Bank uses will be made. The SBC reserves the right to approve less than the number of days requested.
- L. Days granted from the Bank may not be granted for the period of disability when monies are paid to the employee under the Workers' Compensation Law.
- M. Days granted will be compensated at the recipients per diem.
- N. The SBC will review and present to the Treasurer's office approval or denial of all requests to draw on the Bank within ten (10) working days after such request is received by the committee. The committee will also make its decisions known to the applicant within this ten (10) day period.
- O. Sick Bank days shall not be used during summer school employment, normal pregnancy, for purposes of adoption, extended service, or for family illness privileges granted in this Agreement.
- P. If thirty (30) participants are not enrolled by the initial enrollment deadline, the prospective members will not have their donated days removed from their accumulated sick leave account. The Bank will not be established.
- Q. When the number of participants falls below thirty (30) prior to the start of any school year and no additional participants join by September 30<sup>th</sup> of that year, the Bank will be disbanded. The remaining days in the Bank will be valued at the per diem rate of the average teacher's salary, as reported by EMIS. This amount will be put in a scholarship to be awarded at the direction of the SBC.

## 11.0405 APPEAL PROCESS

- A. If a request for use of sick bank days is denied by the SBC, then the applicant may appeal the committee's decision to the Appeal Board within five (5) working days of the denial.
- B. An Appeal Board will be established as needed and will consist of four individuals, two appointed by the Association President or designee, and two appointed by the Superintendent or designee. No member of the Appeal Board shall be the same as the members of the SBC. The Association President shall designate one of his or her appointees as chair.

C. A tie vote will automatically uphold the decision of the SBC. All decisions of the Appeal Board are final and binding and not subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures of this Agreement.

## 11.0406 BARGAINING UNIT MEMBERS AGREEMENT

- A. An employee shall be required to furnish a medical report from a licensed physician at time of initial application before or during the time of use of the leave Bank. The medical report will be at the member's expense. The SBC reserves the right, if necessary, to limit the number of days granted.
- B. An employee who has used days from the Bank will be required to repay these days to the Bank at the rate of three (3) days per year until all days have been paid back. If an employee member:
  - retires or leaves the employment of the District before the total number of days is paid back, then the remaining days owed will be deducted from the employee's total accumulated sick leave balance at the time. However, at no time will the equivalent of remaining days be deducted from an employee's salary.
  - 2. dies before all days owed are paid back, the employee's estate will not be required to pay back the balance owed.
  - 3. remains an employee of the District and decides to withdraw from the Bank, any days donated remain the property of the Bank and any days owed to the Bank will be deducted the same as if the person were continuing to be an active member of the Bank.

Repayment will begin with the school year immediately following withdrawal of days from the Bank.

C. In consideration of the benefits of participating in the Bank, each applicant for membership in the Bank and for benefits from the Bank shall, as a condition to such application, agree in writing substantially as follows.

"I specifically acknowledge and agree that the granting of days from the Sick Leave Bank shall be at the sole discretion of the Sick Bank Committee and that all decisions of the Sick Bank Committee will be final and binding and not subject to grievance. I further agree to abide by such decision and to indemnify and hold harmless the Winton Woods City School District and the Winton Woods Teachers' Association, the Sick Bank Committee, the Appeal Board and all of their

agents for any loss they may sustain as a result of any claim or legal proceedings I may bring against any of them with respect to a decision made by any of them concerning this application, including attorney fees incurred by the Committee, its members, WWTA or the Board."

- D. When an employee donates days to the Bank, he/she agrees to the above stated rules for administration of the Bank and those rules and regulations adopted by the SBC.
- 11.0407 An annual report of the Bank will be published on or before April 30 for each year the Bank is in operation. This report will be published by the Sick Bank Committee. The report shall include a statement of the number of days remaining in the Bank.
- 11.0408 In unusual circumstances, there may be a need to provide employees with additional sick days outside of the sick leave bank provisions. In the interest of compassion, as well as of fairness and equity, the sick leave bank members are hereby authorized to explore the creation of a sick leave donation program. This program should allow for individual donations of a member's accumulated sick leave to individuals facing special hardship, but should also provide guidelines to ensure equity. The sick leave bank committee will report back to the Association President and the Executive Director of Human Resources any recommendations for sick leave donation program. Upon receiving any such recommendations, the Association President and the Executive Director of Human Resources will call upon their respective bargaining teams to meet and negotiate about the recommendation, in accordance with Article XVIII, Section 18.0602.

## 11.05 PAID JURY DUTY AND SUBPOENAED WITNESS DUTY LEAVE

- 11.0501 When an employee must serve on jury duty or is subpoenaed to appear as a witness at a court or public administrative hearing in which the employee is not a party or the subject of the hearing, the employee shall give the Superintendent or designee as much advance written notice of the jury or witness duty as possible, and the employee will be released from duty for each day of required jury duty or witness duty service. An employee must return to work while on jury duty or witness duty if the employee is released from any day or days of jury duty or witness duty by the court or administrative agency.
- The Board will pay an employee absent from work due to jury or subpoenaed witness duty under Section 11.0501 above. Any compensation or fee provided to the employee by the court, administrative agency or party to the dispute may be retained by the employee to cover incidental expenses of jury or witness service.

11.0503

Employees will be credited with time spent on paid jury duty and subpoenaed witness duty leave for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule, seniority or length of service, paid personal business leave, paid sick leave accumulation and Board-paid insurance premium costs.

## 11.06 PAID PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

11.0601

Paid professional leave may be approved by the Superintendent or designee and the requesting employee's immediate supervisor, for purposes of attending appropriate conferences and meetings which provide leadership and growth in areas related to the achievement of building and district goals. Employees are expected to participate in local organizations before professional leave is approved to attend to state or national meetings of the same organizations and employees, where appropriate, are expected to be members of the organization which sponsors the meeting or conference. Priority will be given to planners, presenters and staff members receiving recognition. The district will endeavor to provide equitable access to available staff development opportunities.

11.0602

Employees desiring paid professional leave must submit the professional leave application form, attached hereto and made a part hereof as Appendix G, with an estimate of expenses, to the Superintendent or designee through the employee's immediate supervisor at least one (1) month in advance of the meeting or conference, where practicable.

11.0603

All paid professional leave must be approved in advance by the Superintendent or designee and the requesting employee's immediate supervisor, and the leave will not exceed more than the number of days approved by the Superintendent or designee and the employee's immediate supervisor. Paid professional leave may be approved with reimbursement for full expenses, partial expenses or no reimbursement of expenses. When reimbursement of any expenses is approved, the Board will pay for all actual, reasonable expenses directly incurred by the employee in attending the meeting or conference when the employee's request for reimbursement, as originally approved in full, in part, or without expense reimbursement, attached hereto and made a part hereof as Appendix H, is submitted to the Superintendent or designee in accordance with the procedure set forth in Appendix I, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

11.0604

The administration shall create and maintain a mechanism for tracking approved paid professional leave requests. If a request for paid professional leave is denied at the building level, the request form (Appendix G) with the reason for the denial shall be forwarded to the Superintendent for review. The Administration shall develop and maintain a mechanism to track denials of requests for paid professional leave. A

bargaining unit member may request and receive a conference to discuss any denial of his/her request for paid professional leave.

# 11.07 PAID AND UNPAID MILITARY DUTY LEAVE

11.0701

An employee who is a member or becomes a member of the armed forces of the United States is entitled to a leave of absence for military duty in accordance with applicable federal law, which shall govern the length of the leave and the reinstatement rights of the employee. Ohio law shall not apply to employees on military duty leave. Any employee desiring a leave of absence for military duty leave shall apply for a leave in writing as far in advance of the military duty as possible.

11.0702

Employees on military duty leave, on any workday established by this Agreement, will be paid by the Board in the amount of their base salary provided for in this Agreement up to thirty-one (31) workdays within any one (1) school year. The Board will not pay any employee for any military duty leave which extends beyond thirty-one (31) workdays within any one (1) school year. Employees will be credited with time spent on military duty leave for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule and for seniority of length of service purposes under any article of this Agreement in accordance with applicable federal law. Employees on military duty leave will be credited with paid personal business leave accumulation and paid sick leave accumulation in accordance with applicable federal law.

11.0703

The Board shall pay its share of insurance premium costs for the insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, for an employee on military duty leave for the remainder of the month during which the employee commences the leave. In addition to the payment in the preceding sentence, the Board shall pay its share of insurance premium costs for the insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, for an employee on military duty leave for an additional period of one (1) month within any one (1) school year, and thereafter, an employee on military duty leave may elect to continue the insurance benefits specified in this Agreement by employee payment of the entire premium costs for such Employee checks for insurance coverage shall be made insurance. payable to the respective insurance carriers and given to the Board's Treasurer or designee by the first day of each month for which the employee elects to continue the insurance benefits specified in this Agreement.

#### 11.08 UNPAID CHILD CARE LEAVE

11.0801

The Board shall grant a leave of absence to an employee who has been employed by the Board for two (2) full school years to care for a newborn child, an adopted infant under two (2) years of age or a child for whom the adoption agency requires full-time parental care. All child care leaves of

\_\_\_\_\_

absence shall be without pay. Child care leave shall be counted toward the employee's FMLA leave entitlement, but only to the extent that the employee is entitled to FMLA leave. Those employees who do not meet the two (2) full school year employment requirement and/or the two (2) year adopted child age requirement for child care leave should apply for FMLA leave.

- 11.0802 If the beginning date of the child care leave of absence occurs during a school year, the employee has the choice of an unpaid leave as follows:
  - A. for the remainder of the semester.
  - B. for the remainder of the current school year.
  - C. for the remainder of the current school year and the entire succeeding school year.
- 11.0803 The employee shall submit written application for child care leave on the form attached to this Agreement as Appendix B to the Superintendent or designee not later than forty-five (45) calendar days prior to the requested beginning date of the leave.
  - A. In the case of any adoption, the employee shall submit the written application immediately upon notice of the actual date of receiving the child if this date is less than forty-five (45) calendar days prior to the requested beginning date of the leave.
  - B. If extenuating circumstances arise, a request not to take the requested leave or to take a leave not timely requested will be considered regardless of the forty-five (45) calendar day advance application.
  - C. After receipt of the written application, the Superintendent or designee will notify the employee within five (5) workdays of the Superintendent's recommendation to the Board.
  - D. The Board will act on the request no later than its next regularly scheduled meeting and the employee will be notified within forty-eight (48) hours whether the leave has been approved or disapproved.
  - E. If any part of child care leave is counted toward an employee's FMLA leave entitlement, the employee need only notify the Board thirty (30) calendar days prior to the requested beginning date of the leave, or as soon as practicable.
- 11.0804 It is the responsibility of the employee on a child care leave for the remainder of a current school year (partial year leave) to notify the

Superintendent or designee, in writing, by April 1 of the current school year whether or not the employee will return to work on the date the leave expires, except that in extenuating circumstances, the notice may be delayed beyond April 1 of the current school year, but in no event shall the notice by delayed beyond May 15 of the current school year.

- A. It is the responsibility of an employee on a child care leave for the remainder of one (1) school year and the succeeding school year or for one (1) complete school year or for two (2) complete school years to notify the Superintendent or designee, in writing, no later than December 15, immediately preceding the date on which the leave expires, whether or not the employee will return to work on the date the leave expires.
- B. The Superintendent or designee, after receipt of the notification from the employee, will notify the employee of the availability of assignments and the employee must accept or reject the assignment within seven (7) calendar days after notice.
- C. If the employee rejects the assignment, the employee must send a letter of resignation to the Superintendent or designee within the seven (7) calendar day period.
- D. If the employee accepts the assignment, the employee must submit a letter of acceptance to the Superintendent or designee within the seven (7) calendar day period.
- E. If no timely letter of resignation or letter of acceptance is received by the Superintendent or designee, or if no timely notification in writing of whether or not the employee will return to work is received by the Superintendent or designee, the employee shall be considered as having voluntarily resigned all employment with the Board and all individual employment contracts shall be immediately terminated and the employee shall have no rights to re-employment or reinstatement to any employment with the Board.
- Employees will not be credited with time spent on unpaid child care leave for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule or for seniority or length of service purposes or for paid personal business leave or paid sick leave accumulation purposes. The Board shall not be obligated to pay any insurance premium costs on behalf of employees on unpaid child care leave, except that when such leave is counted toward the employee's FMLA leave entitlement, the Board shall pay its share of health insurance premiums, but only to the extent that the FMLA requires the Board to do so; and except the Board shall pay its share of insurance premium costs of the insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, for an employee on unpaid child care leave for the

remainder of the month during which the employee commences the leave. An employee granted unpaid child care leave may elect to continue insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, during the period of a leave by employee payment of the entire premium costs for such insurance for the period of the leave. Employee checks for insurance coverage shall be made payable to the respective insurance carriers and given to the Board's Treasurer or designee by the first day of each month for which insurance is elected.

#### 11.09 UNPAID SABBATICAL LEAVE

- 11.0901 The Board, upon recommendation of the Superintendent, may grant an unpaid sabbatical leave of absence to qualified employees for the purpose of study, travel or for such other purposes as may be approved by the Board. All sabbatical leaves of absence shall be without pay and will be granted only upon prior written request.
- To be eligible for a sabbatical leave of absence an employee must have been employed by the Board for at least two (2) full consecutive school years.
- 11.0903 Sabbatical leave of absence shall not exceed two (2) school semesters.
- The number of employees granted sabbatical leaves of absence in any one (1) school year shall not exceed two percent (2%) of the total number of employees. If the number of employees requesting sabbatical leave of absence exceeds the number of such leaves available as determined by the Board, the granting of leaves shall be based on the estimated value of the leave to the individual employee and to the Winton Woods City School District, as determined by the Board, within its sole and exclusive discretion.
- 11.0905 An employee who receives a sabbatical leave of absence shall agree to return to service with the Board for a period of two (2) full school years following completion of the leave of absence.
- 11.0906 An employee who returns from a sabbatical leave of absence shall make such reports to the Superintendent of the employee's activities during the leave of absence as may be required by the Superintendent.
- 11.0907 Employees will be credited with time spent on sabbatical leave for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule, and for seniority or length of service purposes under any article of this Agreement but shall not be credited for paid personal business leave or paid sick leave accumulation purposes. The Board shall not be obligated to pay any insurance premium costs on behalf of employees on unpaid sabbatical leave, except that the Board shall pay its share of insurance premium

costs for the insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, for an employee on unpaid sabbatical leave for the remainder of the month during which the employee commences the leave. An employee granted unpaid sabbatical leave may elect to continue insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, during the leave by employee payment of the entire premium costs for such insurance for the period of the leave. Employee checks for insurance coverage shall be made payable to the respective insurance carriers and given to the Board's Treasurer or designee by the first (1st) day of each month for which insurance coverage is elected.

# 11.10 VOLUNTARY AND INVOLUNTARY UNPAID MEDICAL LEAVE

- 11.1001 Employees who have exhausted all accumulated paid sick leave under this Agreement and who desire to be absent from work due to the employee's illness, injury or pregnancy, must submit a written request for unpaid medical leave with supporting verification from the attending physician, as soon as possible, and all unpaid medical leave must be approved in writing by the Superintendent or designee.
- 11.1002 Voluntary unpaid medical leave shall be counted toward the employee's FMLA leave entitlement, but only to the extent that the employee is entitled to FMLA leave. When this occurs, the employee need only provide the Board with such notice as is practicable. Further, the employee need only provide a medical certification within fifteen (15) days after the employee requests the leave, unless it is not practicable under the particular circumstances to do so despite the employee's diligent, good faith efforts.
- The Board shall have the right to place any employee on an involuntary medical leave of absence due to the employee's physical or mental disability. Said employee shall be entitled to a hearing on an unpaid involuntary medical leave of absence in accordance with Ohio Revised Code 3319.13 and 3319.16. An employee on an unpaid involuntary medical leave of absence may elect to use any accumulated paid sick leave days he/she may have under Section 11.03 of this Agreement, and if the employee so elects he/she shall be deemed to be on a paid sick leave under Section 11.03 of this Agreement during the period of time the employee receives paid sick leave.
- 11.1004 Unpaid medical leave will not exceed three hundred sixty-five (365) consecutive calendar days without renewal by the Board. The total period of unpaid medical leave, as approved by the Board, shall not exceed two (2) years.
- 11.1005 Employees will not be credited with time spent on unpaid medical leave for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule or for seniority or length of service purposes under any article of this Agreement or for paid

personal business leave or paid sick leave accumulation purposes. An unpaid medical leave will not be considered an interruption of continuous service for the purposes of reduction in force. The Board shall not be obligated to pay any insurance premium costs on behalf of employees on unpaid medical leave, except that when voluntary unpaid medical leave is counted toward the employee's FMLA leave entitlement, the Board shall pay its share of health insurance premiums, but only to the extent that the FMLA requires the Board to do so; and except that the Board shall pay its share of insurance premium costs for the insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, for an employee on unpaid medical leave for the remainder of the month during which the employee commences the leave. An employee granted unpaid medical leave may elect to continue the insurance benefits as specified in this Agreement, during the period of the leave, by employee payment of the entire premium costs for such Employee checks for insurance coverage shall be made insurance.

payable to the respective insurance carriers and given to the Board's Treasurer or designee by the first (1st) day of each month for which the

# 11.11 ASSAULT LEAVE

11.1101 The Board will grant leave to an employee who is absent due to medical disability or required court appearance resulting from an assault which occurs in the course of Board employment. The employee may be granted up to forty (40) working days' assault leave unless additional days are approved under 11.1105. Thereafter, absence will be deducted from the employee's sick leave.

employee elects insurance coverage.

- 11.1102 Assault leave may not be granted under this policy unless the employee in question:
  - A. Has a signed, written statement, on forms provided by the board, justifying the granting and use of assault leave.
  - B. Provides a letter from a licensed physician stating the nature and duration of the disability related to the assault and the necessity of absence from regular employment.
- 11.1103 Falsification of either the signed statement or the physician's (M.D.) statement shall be grounds for suspension or termination of employment.
- 11.1104 A teacher returning to duty following assault shall be returned to the same position as was held at the time of the incident.
- 11.1105 The Superintendent may grant additional assault leave days at the request of the employee. Any extension granted by the Superintendent will state the number of additional assault leave days granted. The Superintendent

may require the employee to provide periodic medical updates in the same nature as the certificate referred to in 11.1102(B).

- 11.1106 The fact that an employee is on an assault leave or an extension of an assault leave will not delay the application for disability retirement available through the State Teachers Retirement System if the teacher is eligible.
- 11.1107 In no event shall an employee receive more than his or her daily rate of pay from all sources, including Workers' Compensation, sick leave, and assault leave which he or she may be eligible to receive.
- 11.1108 Employees will be credited with time spent on paid assault leave days for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule, seniority or length of service, paid personal business leave, paid sick leave accumulation and Board paid insurance premium costs.

# 11.12 RIGHTS UPON RETURNING FROM LEAVE

- 11.1201 Employees shall be reinstated to active employment by the Board at the conclusion of any approved paid or unpaid leave of absence, except that employees may not be reinstated to any supplemental duty contract employment in effect at the time any unpaid leave was granted. When any part of the leave from which the employee is returning was counted toward the employee's FMLA leave entitlement and the supplemental duty contract has not yet expired, the employee will be reinstated to the supplemental duty contract employment. An employee may be denied reinstatement to active employment by the Board in the event of a reduction in force, in accordance with this Agreement, during the period of his/her approved leave of absence.
- 11.1202 Reinstatement to active employment by the Board at the conclusion of any approved paid or unpaid leave of absence shall be to any available job position within which the employee is properly certified and if the leave of absence is for less than sixty (60) consecutive workdays the employee shall be reinstated to his/her original non-supplemental duty position.
- 11.1203 Employee retirement contributions and other retirement rights for any leave of absence time shall be governed by the then applicable State Teachers' Retirement System laws, rules or regulations.
- 11.1204 Employees returning from an approved paid or unpaid leave of absence shall retain their non-supplemental individual employment contract status.
- 11.1205 An employee who works between sixty (60) and one hundred nineteen (119) workdays during a school year prior to an approved paid or unpaid leave of absence shall be credited for that school year with a half step for step placement on the salary schedule. An employee who works one

hundred twenty (120) or more workdays during a school year prior to an approved paid or unpaid leave of absence shall be credited for that school year with a full step for step placement on the salary schedule.

# 11.13 ABSENCE FROM WORK WITHOUT APPROVAL OF LEAVE AND FAILURE TO RETURN FROM LEAVE

- 11.1301 Employees who are absent from work without approval of a leave of absence as specified in this Article XI, shall be subject to disciplinary action by the Board for just cause, except if the absent employee can prove that justifiable reasons existed for the absence without approval.
- 11.1302 Employees who fail to return from an approved leave of absence as provided for in this Article shall be subject to disciplinary action by the Board for just cause, except if the absent employee can prove that justifiable reasons existed for the absence without approval.
- 11.1303 Employees who are absent from work under Section 11.1301 above and employees who fail to return from an approved leave of absence under Section 11.1302 above, will receive paid sick leave or paid personal business leave for the days they are absent if the absent employee can prove that justifiable reasons existed for the absence and if the absent employee is eligible for paid sick leave or paid personal business leave under this Agreement.
- 11.1304 Employees who are absent from work under 11.1301 above and employees who fail to return from an approved leave of absence under 11.1302 above, and who do not have any accumulated paid sick leave or paid personal business leave or who are not eligible for paid sick leave or paid personal business leave for the days they are absent, but who prove that justifiable reasons existed for the absence, shall not be paid for the days of absence. The amount of pay lost for each day of absence shall be determined by dividing the employee's base salary by the number of workdays in the employee's individual employment contract year.

# **ARTICLE XII:**COMPENSATION

### 12.01 SALARY NOTICES

In accordance with the Ohio Revised Code it is agreed that the Board will issue an annual salary notice to each employee covered by this Agreement.

### 12.02 BASE SALARY

For the 2018-2019 school year, teachers will receive a step increase. In addition to step increases for those eligible, The Board shall pay a one time \$1250 stipend to those teachers who are not eligible for a step increase.

- A. Such stipend shall be paid on or before May 31, 2019.
- B. Those employees subject to non-renewal, notice/threat of non-renewal, termination or voluntary resignation during the contract year (July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019) shall be ineligible for stipend. This does not include retiring teachers.
- C. The steps in the current contract will continue for both years.
- The base salaries of all full-time employees covered under this Agreement during the term of this Agreement shall be as set forth in the base salary schedule in Appendix E-1 of this Agreement, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, and part-time employees who work less than a full contract year or a normal employee workday shall receive a pro-rata salary based on said salary schedules. Appendix E-1 shall be effective for 2018-2019 and 2019-2020. The salary schedule index for Appendix E-1 is set forth in Appendix E-2 of this Agreement.

Effective October 1, 2016, health insurance shall be split as follows: 80% Board/20% employee.

- 12.0202 Each newly hired employee shall be given credit for up to a maximum of ten (10) years of experience for step placement on the salary schedule if such experience is obtained in one (1) or more of the following ways:
  - A. Public elementary and public secondary school teaching experience in Ohio at the rate of one (1) year of credit for each year of experience up to a maximum of ten (10). The Superintendent may recognize up to five (5) additional years of service for initial salary schedule placement.
  - B. Chartered non-public elementary and non-public secondary school teaching experience in Ohio at the rate of one (1) year of credit for each of the first five (5) years of experience and at the rate of one-half (1/2) year of credit for each of the next ten (10) years of experience;

- C. U.S. Government overseas dependent school teaching experience at the rate of one (1) year of credit for each of the first five (5) years of experience and at the rate of one-half (1/2) year of credit for each of the next ten (10) years of experience;
- D. Substitute employee teaching experience in the Board's District at the rate of one (1) year of credit for each one hundred twenty (120) normal workdays worked during a school year;
- E. Tutor experience in the Board's district at the rate of one-half (1/2) year of credit for each six hundred (600) hours of work during a school year;
- F. Active military service with the armed forces of the United States, but not to exceed five (5) years of credit (eight [8] months of continuous service within a partial calendar year shall be recognized as one [1] year of credit for military service purpose);
- G. Where employees obtain experience in other than the above areas in their respective academic fields which is of a unique value to the employee and to the Winton Woods City School District, the Superintendent may approve credit at the rate of one (1) year of credit for each of the first five (5) years of experience and at the rate of one-half (1/2) year of credit for each of the next ten (10) years of experience;
- H. In the event the Board determines that "hard to fill" positions exist and it is necessary to increase the salary to offer, the Board may give credit for up to a maximum of twenty five (25) years of experience for step placement on the salary schedule. Each time the Board utilizes this provision, the Executive Director of Human Resources will notify the Association President in writing.
- 12.0203 For any teaching or tutor experience to be approved for step placement on the salary schedule, the employee must give proof to the Board of having been employed during (a) regular school year(s) and of having been on duty for a minimum of at least one hundred twenty (120) days during each school year. For employees who work less than one hundred twenty (120) days per school year, while employed as teachers or tutors, an annual evaluation shall be made by the Superintendent to determine proper step placement on the salary schedule. Such employees must, over a period of successive years, couple the equivalent of one (1) year's experience, as defined above, in order to advance one step on the salary schedule. All adjustments in years of experience steps for salary schedule purposes will be made at the beginning of each school year.
- 12.0204 It is the responsibility of each employee qualifying for higher educational group placement on the salary schedule to supply the Board using a completed Salary Schedule Credit Verification Form (see Appendix N)

with official proof of additional credits or degrees earned, including acceptable translations of credits or degrees earned at any foreign institutions, no later than September 1 in the fall and January 15 in the winter, of each school year, if a pay adjustment is to be made effective at the beginning of the second semester of that school year. Eligibility for the five (5) year educational group column requires a total of one hundred fifty (150) semester hours of college credit. Placement in the five (5) year educational group column will be made on the basis of either undergraduate or graduate credit from an accredited college or university. Placement in the MA+10, MA+20, or MA+30 educational group columns on the salary schedule will require that each ten (10) semester hours of credit must be graduate credit earned toward state certification or an advanced degree in a state certified college or university or in any graduate course work which directly relates to the employee's job performance in the Board's District which is approved by the Board or designees and all credit must have been earned after the completion of all requirements for the master's degree.

12.0205

For proper placement on the salary schedule, an employee must furnish an official transcript of credits, a valid teaching certificate, and if teaching experience outside the Board's District is to be granted for salary schedule placement purposes, documents proving such experience, and if armed forces experience credit is to be granted, a copy of the proper discharge or separation documents, to the Executive Director of Human Resources, no later than September 1 in the fall or January 15 in the winter of any school year. Upon submission of such information to the Board's Treasurer by the Executive Director of Human Resources, the employee will be moved to the proper placement on the salary schedule, retroactive to the beginning of the then current school year if the adjustment is made in September or to the beginning of the second semester if the adjustment is made in January, provided the documentation meets with the approval of the Executive Director of Human Resources. Failure of an employee to provide proper certification within sixty (60) calendar days after his/her first workday will result in the withholding of pay and may result in the discharge of the employee which shall be a discharge for just cause, as provided for in this Agreement

# 12.03 SUPPLEMENTAL LIMITED CONTRACT PAY

12.0301 Base salaries for extra duty coaching or student activity sponsor positions which were paid positions prior to the effective date of this Agreement shall be increased by the same percentage as the BA step 0 column in the teacher's salary schedule for each year of this agreement. The listing of paid positions is in Appendix F-1.

12.0302 Employees employed under individual employee supplemental limited contracts in extra duty student activity positions which were not paid in accordance with Appendix F, will be paid for such future duty in such

\_\_\_\_\_

positions in accordance with this Section 12.03. The high school will receive six thousand dollars (\$6,000.00) each school year, the middle school will receive five thousand two hundred and fifty dollars (\$5,250.00) each school year, and each elementary school (buildings serving students in any configuration of grades Pre-K through 6) will receive three thousand two hundred and fifty dollars (\$3,250.00) each school year, which will be used to pay for those extra duty student activity positions which were not paid in accordance with Appendix F, and each building principal shall list the positions to be funded and the dollars to be paid for each position prior to filling the position.

- 12.0303 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit the Board from creating any new individual employee limited supplemental contract extra duty positions during the term of this Agreement.
- 12.0304 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit the Board from abolishing any individual employee limited supplemental extra duty position during the term of this Agreement.
- 12.0305 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit any employee from voluntarily accepting any extra duty position not listed in Appendix F without pay at any time during the term of this Agreement.
- 12.0306 Revisions and/or re-evaluations to the Supplemental Salary Schedule are to be made as follows:
  - A. Requests for revision/re-evaluation of a supplemental position must be presented to either the Athletic Director, Fine Arts Facilitator, or immediate supervisor as appropriate, using the form attached hereto as Appendix S. The Athletic Director, Fine Arts Facilitator or immediate supervisor may comment on the request as he or she believes is appropriate, and shall return the form to the employee who submitted it after affixing his or her signature. The employee must then file the form with the Supplemental Review Team via the Human Resources Office by April 1 for consideration for the following school year. Examination of the requests for revision/re-evaluation will be acted upon by the team by April 30. If the job description is changed after April 1 of any year, application must be made within thirty (30) days of the change, and it will be acted upon within thirty (30) days of receipt by the team.
  - B. The review and re-evaluation process must consider the position in relation to like positions as well as in relation to all positions on the schedule.
  - C. All requests are to be filed by completing and submitting the Supplemental Position Re-evaluation Request Form in Appendix S prior to the established deadline.

\_\_\_\_

- D. The Supplemental Review Team will evaluate the request and make a decision relative to the approval, and communicate this decision to the Executive Director of Human Resources, the WWTA President, the employee who brought forward the request, and the immediate supervisor, Athletic Director, or Fine Arts Facilitator as appropriate. The Superintendent will forward the recommendations to the Board of Education if the Team confirms the need for a change which requires Board approval.
- E. The membership of the Supplemental Review Team shall include the District Treasurer, two (2) representatives selected by the WWTA (one High School and one Middle School representative, if possible), the Athletic Director, the Fine Arts Facilitator, and the Executive Director of Human Resources.
- 12.0307 Employees who have a regular teaching contract (primary job) and one or more supplemental contract(s) (secondary job) shall have the option of filing with the Treasurer's office a W-4 form for the primary job and a separate W-4 form for the secondary job. These forms will be accepted and implemented in accordance with the annual "payroll dates" published by the Treasurer's office. There can be no more than two (2) W-4 forms in effect at any time; one W-4 form for the primary job and one W-4 for the secondary job. The annual "payroll dates" will be provided to employees by the Treasurer's office and the Winton Woods Teacher's Association after it is published. Additionally, the Board will advise employees of this option when supplemental duty contracts are issued.

#### 12.04 EXTENDED SERVICE PAY

12.0401 Employees selected by the Board for extended service work in excess of one hundred eighty-five (185) workdays during an individual employee's limited or continuous individual employment contract year, shall be issued a supplemental limited contract for such extended service and shall be compensated under said contract in the amount of one-half of one percent (.05%) of the individual employee's base salary for each full workday of extended duty service as workday is defined in Section 10.02 of this Agreement. Work of less than a full workday shall be paid only on a proportional basis. Extended service pay shall be based on the employee's individual base salary in effect when the work is performed.

12.0402 Those bargaining unit members holding supplemental contracts for extended time during the 2018-2019 school year in the following areas and who remain in that same position shall continue to receive extended time contracts for the number of days of extended service:

Guidance Counselors – 20 days School Nurses – 10 days

# Librarians – 20 days Gifted and Talented – 5 days

# 12.05 SUMMER SCHOOL, HOME INSTRUCTION, CURRICULUM AND TEXTBOOK COMMITTEE

12.0501

Employees who teach in the Board's District during summer school, and employees who teach in the Board's District as home instructors at any time or perform work on a District curriculum and textbook committee shall receive a base hourly rate twenty seven dollars (\$28.00) per hour of work.

### 12.06 NATIONAL BOARD CERTIFICATION STIPEND/NEW TECH BADGING

A one-time stipend of \$1,500.00 will be paid by the Board to any member attaining certification by the National Board of Teaching Standards. Teachers who complete the New Tech Badging for New Tech Certified Teachers, shall receive a one-time stipend of fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500). Teachers who complete the New Tech Certified Trainer Certification, will receive an additional fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) for completion of this process. This section shall apply to all teachers who began completion of these certifications dating back to August 1, 2013. Teachers must repay stipend if they voluntarily leave district within two (2) years after earning the badge or certificate. This payment shall be withheld from the final payout.

### 12.07 EDUCATION OPTIONS PROCEDURE

Bargaining unit member participation in this program shall be on a voluntary basis.

# ARTICLE XIII: FRINGE BENEFITS

### 13.01 LIFE INSURANCE

13.0101

The Board will provide group term life insurance coverage to eligible employees with full premium costs paid by the Board. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work twenty-two and one-half (22.50) or more hours per work week will be provided with group term life insurance coverage in an amount equal to their annual base salary as set forth in the salary schedules in Appendixes E-1 and E-2, rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00). Employees who are regularly scheduled to work between fifteen (15) and twenty-two and forty-nine one hundredths (22.49) hours per work week will be provided with group term life insurance coverage in an amount equal to one-half (1/2 their annual base salary as set forth in the salary schedules in Appendixes E-1 and E-2, rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00). Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than fifteen (15) hours per week will not be provided with any group term life insurance coverage. New eligible employees will be covered by life insurance coverage on the first (1st) day of the month following commencement of their active employment by the Board.

- 13.0102 Employees who are between sixty-five (65) years of age and seventy (70) years of age shall receive sixty-five percent (65%) of the insurance coverage provided for in 13.0101 above.
- 13.0103 The Board shall not be obligated to make any premium payments under this Section 13.01 for employees who are suspended due to a reduction in force. Employees who are suspended due to a reduction in force may continue their group term life insurance coverage under this Section 13.01 during the suspension by employee payment of the entire premium costs for such insurance for the period of the suspension. Employee checks for insurance coverage shall be made payable to the insurance carrier and given to the Board's Treasurer or designee by the first day of each month for which life insurance is elected.
- 13.0104 The Board shall have the right to change the life insurance carrier providing the life insurance benefits under this Section 13.01 at any time provided such benefits shall not be reduced.
- 13.0105 The employer will offer a voluntary life insurance plan. The cost of the plan will be borne by the employees who choose to enroll.

### 13.02 DENTAL, VISION AND MEDICAL PLANS

13.0201 Employees who are regularly scheduled to work twenty-two and one-half (22.50) hours or more per work week shall be provided with the Dental

Care Plus (7195 Plan C) single employee or family group dental coverage, whichever is applicable, for the duration of this Agreement. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work from fifteen (15) to twenty-two and forty-nine one hundredths (22.49) hours per work week shall be provided with only the existing single employee group dental coverage. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than fifteen (15) hours per work week will not be provided with any group dental coverage.

All costs for the group dental plan shall be shared. The Board shall pay ninety percent (90%) of the cost during the term of this Agreement and employees shall pay ten percent (10%) of the cost. Employees may enroll in the dental plan at the time of their initial employment or during the annual September open enrollment period.

- 13.0202 The Board shall offer two group health plans as outlined in Appendix \_\_\_\_.
  - A. Employees shall be required to attend one enrollment meeting outside of the workday.
  - B. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than fifteen (15) hours per work week shall not be eligible to participate in any medical plan. All plan costs not paid by the Board shall be paid by the employee.
- The Board shall have the right to change the medical plan carrier or carriers providing the medical benefits and specifications shall not be reduced and the carrier or carriers are licensed by the State of Ohio.
- The specifications of the Board's existing group medical plan options shall be contained in the benefit booklets provided by carrier.
- A Health Insurance Committee consisting of three (3) WWTA members appointed by the President and three (3) Board appointees will meet if called by either party to explore more cost effective plans.

If changes in plan design, benefits or specifications become necessary due to lack of availability of the current plans, benefits or specifications, the health insurance committee will meet to explore alternative plans in an effort to come as close as possible to the current plan. If the committee is unable to reach consensus the language in 13.0206 will be implemented.

- The parties agree that should the Board implement any decrease in benefits or specifications regarding medical and/or dental plans, then Sections 12.0201, 12.03, 12.05, 13.02, and 13.09 will be reopened. The dispute resolution procedure in Section 17.05 shall be used if necessary.
- 13.0207 Notwithstanding Sections 13.0202, 13.0205 and 13.0206, if the premium is projected to increase more than 10%, the insurance committee will meet

\_\_\_\_\_

and propose plan design changes to bring the increase under ten percent (10%) or employees shall bear the cost of any increase over ten percent (10%).

# 13.03 VISION CARE

The Board will offer a voluntary vision care plan through Eye-Med to members. The cost of the plan will be borne by employees who choose to enroll.

#### 13.04 SEVERANCE PAY

An employee may elect, at the time of retirement, to be paid in cash for one-fourth (1/4) of the value of his/her accumulated, but unused, sick leave reserve, not to exceed a total of fifty (50) days at the employee's regular daily rate of pay. Effective July 1, 2015, if the employee has capped at fifty (50) days when calculating severance pay, the employee shall receive additional severance based on the following criteria:

If the employee has a minimum of fifteen years of service with the Winton Woods City School District, the employee shall receive one-fourth (1/4) of the value of his/her accumulated, but unused, sick leave reserve excess of two hundred (200) days, not to exceed a total of twenty (20) days at the employees regular rate of pay.

If the employee has a minimum of twenty five years of service with the Winton Woods City School District, the employee shall receive one-fourth (1/4) of the value of his/her accumulated, but unused, sick leave reserve excess 200 days, not to exceed a total of Thirty (30) days at the employees regular rate of pay.

The regular daily rate of pay shall be calculated by dividing the employee's base salary during the employee's last individual employment contract year with the board by the number of workdays the employee was required to work under the employee's last individual employment contract with the board.

Payment for sick leave on this basis shall eliminate all unused sick leave reserve accrued by the employee up to the time of payment. Such payment shall be made only once to any employee, and the payment shall be made as early in the year following retirement as possible without forcing the Board to borrow funds to meet the payment but in no case will the payment be later than March 31 of the year following retirement. Verification of the effective date of retirement from the appropriate retirement system must precede any payment to the employee.

Severance pay will be paid as follows:

e. Employees age 55 or older in the calendar year of separation of service forfeit cash rights to this payment in return for a payment of the equivalent value to a 403b Accumulated Leave Plan.

f. Employees younger than 55 in the calendar year of separation will receive cash payment of this money.

### 13.05 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT

Employees whose assignments require them to use their own personal vehicles to travel from building to building or to other assigned locations will have their mileage reimbursed by the Board at the IRS rate in effect on August 1 of each school year. To secure reimbursement, an employee must fill out the Board's mileage reimbursement form and submit it to the Board's Business Office.

# 13.06 BOARD PICKUP OF EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS TO STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

13.0601

For tax sheltering purposes only, the Board shall continue to designate and consider (i.e., "pickup"), each employee's mandatory contribution to the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), as deferred salary paid by the Board. The amount of an employee's income reported by the Board as subject to Federal and Ohio Income Tax shall be the employee's total gross income reduced by the amount of the employee's mandatory contribution to the STRS. No employee's total earnings paid by the Board shall be increased by application of this Section 13.06, nor shall the Board's contributions to the STRS or any other costs be increased thereby. The Association agrees that the Board assumes no other or further liability to any person or entity under this Section 13.06, and that the definition of current and/or deferred income subject to taxation is determined solely by the Internal Revenue Service and Ohio Taxing Authorities. The Board shall have the right to immediately and unilaterally discontinue all its obligations under this Section 13.06, if so ordered by STRS and/or the Internal Revenue Service or Ohio Taxing Authorities, notwithstanding any provision contained in this Agreement to the contrary. Rules 77-464 and 81-36 of the Internal Revenue Service and Opinion 82-097 of the Ohio Attorney General and the Rules of STRS, and such rules as the aforementioned agencies, including Ohio Taxing Authorities, may subsequently issue are applicable to the Board notwithstanding any provisions set forth in this Agreement.

13.0602

The "pickup" amount shall be included in the employee's annual base salary for the purposes of computing base salary, weekly rates of pay, and daily rates of pay, hourly rates of pay and for determining pay or salary due to absence or for any other purpose under this Agreement.

#### 13.07 LIABILITY OF BOARD

Nothing in this Article shall make the Board a self-insurer of insurance benefits or make the Board liable to pay any employee's insurance claim in the event any insurance carrier denies an employee's claim.

# 13.08 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

- 13.0801 It is agreed that for the term of this Agreement a cap of forty thousand dollars (\$40,000.00) will be established on the annual amount appropriated by the Board for educational growth payments to employees.
- In order to qualify for this educational growth payment, an employee must teach in the Winton Woods Schools the year following completion of the work. To clarify, if an employee completes courses during the previous school year, he/she will be paid the educational growth payment during the following school year, no later than October 1, if he/she is still teaching in the Winton Woods Schools.
- 13.0803 Course of study selected is subject to prior approval of the Superintendent or designee. The employee shall submit the form attached hereto as Appendix M and a copy of the registration form to the Superintendent or designee prior to beginning the coursework to obtain approval. The payment shall apply only towards graduate work beyond the B.A. level acquired by the employee to meet certification or licensure requirements established by the State of Ohio for maintaining or upgrading their current certificate or license. Satisfactory evidence of successful completion of the course (certified transcripts) will be presented to the Superintendent or designee upon the completion of the course, and no later than September 1.
- 13.0804 For approved college credit the amount payable to any employee shall be for up to a total of nine (9) hours per school year. In no event shall payment exceed the actual cost per semester hour. Quarter hours will be converted to semester hours for the purpose of reimbursement. The amount of the reimbursement per semester hour shall be determined by dividing the appropriated annual amount of forty thousand dollars (\$40,000) by the total number of semester hours completed and submitted. The resulting amount per semester hour shall be applied to the semester hours submitted and completed, up to nine (9) hours per school year.
- The year for disbursement purposes is defined as July 1 through June 30. The classes for any coursework must have started on or before June 30 in order for the employee to receive reimbursement by October 1. All qualified employees who take approved credit hours within this time period and submit their documentation in a timely manner will receive some reimbursement.
- 13.0806 For approved C.E.U. /P.D.U. work, reimbursement will be for up to fifty percent (50%) of the workshop registration fee.

13.09	TAX SHELTER – 125 PLAN
13.0901	A Premium Only Plan will be offered to employees in a tax shelter 125 plan with no cost to the Board and no cost to the employees.
13.0902	An Expanded Option Plan with health care premium, eligible medical expenses and day care will be offered to employees at a cost to the board not to exceed ten thousand dollars (\$10,000.00) per year and at no cost to the employees.
13.0903	Money left in the Expanded Option Plan at the end of the calendar year and not expended for eligible medical expenses and day care will be forfeited. If the forfeiture amount exceeds the costs of administering the plan for that year, the remaining amount shall be placed in the "Stevie Lawler Memorial Award Fund."

# **ARTICLE XIV:** PAY PERIODS

- 14.01 Employees will be paid two (2) times a month. Employees who do not carry benefits may choose to be paid in twenty (20) or twenty-four (24) installments. Employees who carry benefits will be paid in twenty-four (24) installments. The following conditions and restrictions will apply:
  - 14.0101 Checks will be distributed on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) and last day of the month, except;
  - 14.0102 When one of these days falls on Saturday, payment will be made on the last working day for the Treasurer's office preceding the Saturday.
  - 14.0103 When one of these days falls on Sunday, payment will be made on the last working day for the Treasurer's office preceding the Sunday.
  - 14.0104 When one of these days falls on a holiday, payment will be made on the last preceding workday for the Treasurer's office.
- 14.02 No advances will be made against any payments due to any employee from the Board and checks will not be given out prior to the established time as specified above.
- 14.03 There will be no summer pick-up of checks from the Treasurer's office except for those regularly working during that period of time.
- 14.04 Separate checks may be issued at times other than regular payroll dates for assignments such as extracurricular activities and Saturday Study-Detention and payment for these assignments will be paid in two installments: one mid assignment the other at the conclusion of the assignment. Separate checks may be issued for assignments such as curriculum development, early entrance testing, workshop presentations, career education development, project coordination and other committee work and payment for these assignments will be on the next regular payroll date following ten (10) working days after completion of the assignment and submission of a timecard approved by the appropriate supervisor.
- 14.05 There will be no changes in pay options from twenty (20) to twenty-four (24) or from twenty-four (24) to twenty (20) during the employee's individual employment contract year. Exceptions will be available on request for those employees leaving the employ of the School District who wish to have their twenty-four (24) payments completed at the end of their work year. Under this exception all fringe benefits will terminate on the date the final paycheck is issued to the employee.
- 14.06 Applicable taxes, retirement deductions, annuities and credit union contributions will be divided among the pays as evenly as possible. Other deductions will be divided and taken out of alternate pays.

# 14.07 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

14.0701

The Board will make voluntary payroll deductions on behalf of employees who elect such deductions, in writing, for life insurance premium payments, health and dental insurance premium payments, United Way contributions, OEA Fund For Children And Public Education contributions, supplemental disability insurance premium payments, cancer care program premium payments, tax sheltered annuity payments, credit union contributions or payments and such other deductions as may be approved by the Board or its designee. Deduction(s) may be authorized or cancelled at any time upon written notification to the Board Treasurer's office by the employee except in the case of a tax sheltered annuity payment. Requests for enrollment in and/or changes to a tax sheltered annuity and cancellations may be submitted at any time.

Enrollments and changes may occur at any time that the employee experiences a "change in life" status as that term is defined in the Internal Revenue Code, Section 125. Before deductions will be made for a tax sheltered annuity, the annuity must have at least five (5) employees enrolled in it who have authorized a deduction. However, tax sheltered annuities receiving payments from employees of the Board as of July 31, 1994 will continue to be recognized so long as one (1) employee is making a payment. If a tax sheltered annuity's enrollment drops to zero (0) then the annuity must demonstrate it has five (5) Board employees who have authorized payroll deductions before deductions will be made.

- 14.0702 The Board and the Association agree that the Board and the Association assume no other or further liability to any person or entity under this provision. Any penalties or assessments caused by an employee's actions under this provision shall be the responsibility of and assumed by the employee.
- 14.0703 Deductions shall be forwarded to the appropriate agency within five (5) workdays of the deduction assuming a bill is received.

#### 14.08 ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS

- 14.0801 An employee's salary shall be paid by electronic transfer to a financial institution of the employee's choosing each pay date. If the pay date is not a regularly scheduled workday, the electronic transfer shall be made in accordance with Section 14.01.
- 14.0802 Bargaining unit members will be paid two (2) times a month in twenty-four (24) installments Via direct deposit.

Direct Deposits will be distributed on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) and the last day of the month except: When one of these days falls on a weekend or a legal holiday

the direct deposits will be distributed on the preceding Banking day. (Banking days do not occur on weekends or legal holidays).

# ARTICLE XV: EMPLOYEE MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS

- 15.01 Each newly hired employee, at the employee's expense, shall give satisfactory evidence of his/her physical and mental health to the Board prior to commencing employment. The Board may require each new employee to successfully complete a medical examination by a nurse employed by the Board and/or by a physician selected by the Board or its designee and all such examinations shall be at the Board's expense.
- 15.02 All new employees, at the employee's expense, will be required to submit satisfactory evidence of a negative tuberculin test and/or negative chest x-ray prior to commencing employment.
- 15.03 The Board or its designee reserves the right to require an employee to submit to a medical examination by a licensed physician of his/her choice and, if determined necessary by the Board, by a licensed physician chosen by the employee from a list of five (5) Board designated licensed physicians, both examinations paid for by the Board, to determine the employee's ability to perform the duties of the employee's job prior to approving or placing any employee on any unpaid leave of absence under Section 11.10 of this Agreement or any paid sick leave under Section 11.03 of this Agreement. The Board shall have the right to require any employee to submit to a medical examination, by a licensed physician of his/her choice prior to the employee's return to work from any unpaid medical leave of absence under Section 11.10 of this Agreement or any paid sick leave under Section 11.03 of this Agreement. The physician(s) conducting the examination(s) will only supply their recommendations and not the specific reasons concerning the ability to perform the duties of the job to the Superintendent, the Board and the employee. Should a dispute occur concerning the Board's decision to approve or place an employee on an unpaid medical leave of absence or paid sick leave, the recommendations of the physician(s) can be disclosed to the Board's and Association's representatives and the referee and courts who are involved in resolving the dispute as provided by and in accordance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 3319.13 and 3319.16.
- 15.04 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive the physician-patient privilege provided by the Ohio Revised Code.

#### **ARTICLE XVI:**

# ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION PROGRAM (AEP)

- 16.01 Due to the unique needs of the students they serve, members working in the AEP will have the variations listed in this Section from the terms and conditions of employment for other members covered by this Agreement. All other terms and conditions of employment for teachers assigned to the AEP and not listed below, will be consistent with those of other members and as detailed throughout this Agreement.
  - A. The student year begins one week earlier than the regular school calendar and the staff year begins three (3) days earlier than the regular staff work year.
  - B. The AEP teachers will attend the district and building level meetings on the first teacher work days.
  - C. Because of the early start, the Project Success programs will not meet during the week of Thanksgiving and teachers in the AEP will not be in attendance at that time.
  - D. Teachers in the AEP will attend four (4) evening parent conferences (one per quarter, lasting 2 ½ hours each) and evening training sessions. The amount of time attending the evening training sessions shall not be more than the total amount of after-school time provided in the Collective Bargaining Agreement (Section 10.0202 A, C and D). The AEP teachers will also attend six (6) evening parent-training sessions that will be two (2) hours in length for each session.
  - E. Two additional hours will be held in reserve in the event it is necessary to lengthen the day as provided in Section 10.0202, provided there is at least a seventy-two (72) hours notice to the AEP staff.
  - F. Each AEP teacher shall have a forty-five (45) minute lunch and sixty (60) minute to seventy-five (75) minutes per day for preparation. This preparation time shall be provided in an equitable manner to each AEP teacher.
  - G. The workday for an AEP teacher will not exceed four hundred and forty (440) minutes per day except as otherwise provided in this agreement.
- 16.02 The representatives for the board and the Association shall review the AEP operation and determine if there is any need to modify its operation and the requirements of the AEP teachers for subsequent years.

# **ARTICLE XVII:** SEVERABILITY

If, during the life of this Agreement, there exists an applicable law or any applicable rule, regulation, or order issued by any governmental authority, which shall render invalid or restrain compliance with or enforcement of any provision of this Agreement, such provision shall be immediately suspended, and be of no effect thereafter, so long as such law, rule, regulation or order shall remain in effect. Such invalidation of a part or portion of this Agreement shall not invalidate any other remaining portions of this Agreement which shall continue in full force and effect. In the event of suspension or invalidation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties will meet and negotiate within thirty (30) calendar days after such event for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such provision.

# ARTICLE XVIII: NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

# 18.01 PROCEDURE

18.0101

Either the Association or the Board may initiate negotiations by a "Notice to Negotiate" forwarded to the other party no sooner than one hundred twenty (120) days nor later than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement, or sixty (60) days prior to the date of a currently negotiated re-opener. Within fifteen (15) working days of transmittal of said notice, the parties shall hold their first negotiations session. The first negotiating session shall be for the purpose of exchanging proposals and determining any ground rules deemed necessary.

18.0102

Each bargaining team shall consist of no more than eight (8) persons of which one shall be designated the spokesperson. Each team may be allowed to have two (2) additional persons at any one time attend as consultant(s). Such person(s) shall not be considered as a part of the bargaining team. All bargaining shall be conducted by said teams.

18.0103

Neither party in any negotiations shall have any control over the selection of the negotiating team or bargaining representatives of the other parties.

#### 18.02 GOOD FAITH, EXCHANGE OF FACTS AND VIEWS

Both parties shall bargain in good faith. Facts, opinions, proposals, and counter-proposals may be exchanged freely between the parties in an effort to reach understanding and agreement. The teams will be cloaked with the authority to bargain and reach tentative agreement. Neither party shall be forced to make a concession.

### 18.03 SCOPE OF BARGAINING

Negotiable matters shall be all matters pertaining to wages, hours, or terms and other conditions of employment and the continuation, modification, or deletion of an existing provision of a collective bargaining agreement.

#### 18.04 AGREEMENT

When final agreement is reached through negotiations, it shall be reduced to writing and submitted for ratification to the Association. The Association shall vote on ratification of the tentative agreement at a general membership meeting. Upon ratification, the Association President shall notify the Superintendent in writing who shall then submit the ratified agreement to the Board for adoption within seven (7) days of notification. Upon official adoption by the Board, the agreement shall be signed by both parties.

# 18.05 DISPUTE SETTLEMENT PROCEDURE

18.0501 In the event that negotiations for a new Master Contract do not result in an agreement, the parties agree to utilize the resolution procedure as

provided in 4417.14 of the Ohio Revised Code.

18.0502 All costs of the fact-finder not paid by the State of Ohio will be shared

equally by the parties.

#### 18.06 IN-TERM CONTRACT BARGAINING

18.0601

If, during the term of the contract, bargaining is necessary due to severability or a scheduled re-opener provision in the contract, the parties shall meet and bargain in accordance with the provisions of Sections 18.01 through 18.04 above, and/or Article XVII, if applicable. The dispute settlement procedure shall be the same process as outlined in Section 18.05 except that the call for the mediator shall be made twenty (20) days from the first bargaining session, the call for fact-finding shall be made any time after the twentieth (20th) day after the first mediation session, and the fact-finder shall issue his or her report within fifteen (15) days after the fact-finding hearing.

18.0602

If in-term contract bargaining occurs for any other reason, the parties shall negotiate for no more than twenty (20) days, after which the parties shall request the assistance of a mediator through the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS). If no resolution is achieved within an additional twenty (20) days after the first mediation session, the process shall be considered concluded and impasse shall exist between the parties, unless the time period is extended by mutual agreement. The participation of the Board and/or the Association in in-term bargaining shall not prejudice or prevent any grievance by the Association or Unfair Labor Practice (ULP) charge by either party nor be construed as an admission by either party that any such grievance or ULP charge has merit. Following the conclusion of in-term bargaining without resolution of the issue or issues, either party shall have an additional period of time equal to the original filing period in which to file such grievance or, subject to the requirements of the State Employment Relations Board, a ULP charge.

# **ARTICLE XIX:** CONCLUSION

### <u>19.01 DURATION</u>

This Agreement shall be in effect from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020. There will be a reopener in the Spring of 2019 for compensation and benefits if the substitute levy passes. The steps in the current contract will continue for both years.

#### 19.02 COMPLETE AGREEMENT

Both the Board and the Association agree that this instrument represents the entire complete Agreement between the parties and supersedes any and all prior oral or written agreements or understandings between the Board and the Association. All Board resolutions, policies, practices, procedures, rules or regulations and employee benefits or terms and conditions of employment which are contrary to or inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement are superseded by this Agreement. All Board resolutions, policies, practices, procedures, rules or regulations and employee benefits or terms and conditions of employment which are not contrary to or inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, but which are not expressly incorporated into this Agreement, shall continue in effect until changed or discontinued by the Board after fulfilling any bargaining obligation it may have to the Association under Ohio law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, after adoption and approval of this entire Agreement by the Board by resolution, pursuant to 4117.10(B) of the Ohio Revised Code, have set their hands and seals this day of November , 2018.

FOR THE BOARD:	FOR THE ASSOCIATION:
Jessica Miranda, Board President	By Huna Balau Trina Baker, President
oessica mijajida, board riesidelli	irina baker, President
By Arthony G. Sin	By Jew Reddert Jeri Beddert, President
Anthony Smith, Superintendent	Jeri Peddert, President
By Fandy I Slesson	By Cio Cinels
Randy Seymour, Treasurer	Cris Cornelssen, Bargaining Chair

Grievance No	APPENDIX A
GRIEVANCE FORM	
Winton Woods City Schools	
Name of Grievant:	
Date:	
Job Classification:	
Job Location:	
Name of Administrator/Supervisor:	
Date Event Occurred Giving Rise to Grievance	
Has the employee attempted to resolve grievance with supervisor?YesNo Statement of Cause of Grievance (including date, time, place and all factual circumstances	);
one control of the co	·)·
	=======================================
	<del></del>
Provisions of Agreement Subject to Interpretation, Application or Alleged Violation:	
Remedy Requested:	

Signature of Grievant

APPENDIX B

# APPLICATION FOR UNPAID CHILD CARE LEAVE

Winton Woods City Schools

DIRE	ECTIONS: Please carefully read Section 11.08 of the Care Leave.	he Collective Bargaining Agreement v	vhich governs Unpaid Child
Name	е	Date	
	2	,	month/day/year
Schoo	ol & Assignment		
Date	Received by Superintendent or Designee:		
1. E	Expected date of birth or adoption:		
			month/day/year
2. F	Requested date of leave to begin:		
			month/day/year
3. F	Requested date of return to work from leave:		month/day/year
I have	e read Section 11.08 of the Collective Bargaining Agr	eement which governs Unpaid Child C	are Leave.
ТОВ	BE COMPLETED BY SUPERINTENDENT OR DES	IGNEE:	
Reco	mmendation to Board of Education: on for disapproval:	Approved	Disapproved
Board cc:	d Date Superintendent Treasurer File	Superintendent or Designee	

APPENDIX C Side 1

### APPLICATION FOR PAID PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE DAYS

Winton Woods City Schools

[To be submitted to the employee's immediate supervisor Three (3) days in advance of leave day.]

Date:	
I, hereby serve notice that I shall be absent from duty for 1/4, 1/2, 3/4, 1, 2, 3 (circle one) day(s) on	_
I further certify that such leave is necessary for the observance of religious holidays that require my total abstinence from work, for business of a personal nature that is not under my control and cannot be conducted at a time other than on my workday and during my work time, or for substitution for unpaid FMLA leave.	
I have read the Personal Business Leave Section (Section 11.02) of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (reproduced on the reverse side of this form) and affirm that the use of the above-stated time is within the limits of that provision.	
Signature of Applicant	
Signature of Supervisor	
Approved	
oc to employee	

APPENDIX C Side 2

#### 11.02 PAID AND UNPAID PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE

11.0201

All employees shall earn a minimum of three (3) personal business leave days for each school year of employment with the Board. These days shall be granted as paid days of absence for the observance of religious holidays that require total abstinence from work or for personal business that is not under the control of the employee and that cannot be conducted at a time other than on an employee's workday and during an employee's work time, or for substitution for unpaid FMLA leave. Fractional days must be used when the absence does not require a full day's absence, except when paid personal business leave is substituted for unpaid FMLA leave. No paid or unpaid personal business leave shall be deducted from an employee's accumulated sick leave reserve.

11.0202

An application for paid personal business leave shall be made to the employee's immediate supervisor at least three (3) days in advance of the leave day on the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as Appendix C. The requirement of advance notice shall be waived by the immediate supervisor because of emergency conditions that prevent the giving of advance notice.

11.0203

For good and sufficient reason(s) approved by the Superintendent or designee, personal business leave with pay or without pay may be approved beyond the limitations set forth in Section 11.0201 above. A letter from the employee outlining the extreme extenuating circumstances must be presented to the Superintendent or designee for advance written approval of personal business leave with pay or without pay which is beyond the limitations set forth in Section 11.0201 above, except the requirement of advance notice shall be waived by the Superintendent or designee because of emergency conditions that prevent the giving of advance notice.

11.0204

An employee's failure to follow the procedures of this Article or an employee's use of personal business leave for reasons other than those specified in Section 11.0201 or Section 11.0203 above, shall constitute a willful violation of this Agreement by the employee and shall constitute just cause for disciplinary action.

11.0205

Employees will be credited with paid or unpaid personal business leave time for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule, seniority or length of service, paid personal leave, and paid sick leave accumulation. The Board shall not be obligated to pay any insurance premium costs on behalf of employees on unpaid personal business leave, except that when such leave is counted toward the employee's FMLA leave entitlement, the Board shall pay its share of health insurance premiums, but only to the extent that the FMLA requires the Board to do so; and except that the Board shall pay its share of insurance premium costs for the insurance benefits, as specified in this Agreement, for an employee on unpaid personal business leave for the remainder of the month during which the employee commences the leave. An employee granted unpaid personal business leave may elect to continue the insurance benefits as specified in this Agreement, during the period of the leave, by employee payment of the entire premium costs for such insurance. Employee checks for insurance coverage shall be made payable to the respective carriers and given to the Board's Treasurer or designee by the first (1st) day of each month for which the employee elects insurance coverage.

11.0206

If a member has one or more paid personal business leave days remaining unused at the end of the school year, two (2) days will be added to the member's sick leave balance and reflected in the first pay check in July.

APPENDIX D

# APPLICATION FOR PAID SICK LEAVE

Winton Woods City Schools

Employee's N	ame:			Date Submitted:_	
School Assign	ed:			Approved:	Disapproved
	Date: By:				
		at he/she is hereby mak r the following reason:	ing applicatio	n for the use of sich	k leave days and that the u se of
1. Reason fo	or use of leave:				
B C		or pregnancy re to contagious disease death in immediate fam	ily		
2. If A, B, o	r C is checked above	e, was medical attention	required?	Yes	No
3. If "yes" p	lease state the name	and address of the physi	ician and the c	ates consulted.	
4. If "D" is (	Address: Dates consulted: checked above, pleas Name:		s and relations	hip of such member	rs of your immediate family.
	Address: Relationship:				
5. I hereby r 20	equest , and ending	_day(s) of sick leave be _ AM/PM on	ginning at	AM/PM on, 2	0
			Signotives	of Employee	
			Signature	or Employee	

If disapproved state reasons:

Winton Woods City School District Salary Schedule Teachers Effective August 1, 2018

Base \$41,079

Step	Bachelor's	Five-Year	Master's	MA+10	MA+20	MA+30	<u>PhD</u>
0	41,079	42,928	44,858	45,224	45,589	45,955	46,320
1	42,928	44,858	46,879	47,245	47,610	47,976	48,341
2	44,858	46,879	48,987	49,352	49,718	50,083	50,449
3	46,879	48,987	51,193	51,558	51,924	52,289	52,655
4	48,987	51,193	53,497	53,863	54,228	54,594	54,959
5	51,193	53,497	55,904	56,270	56,635	57,001	57,366
6	53,497	55,904	58,418	58,784	59,149	59,515	59,880
7	55,904	58,418	61,048	61,413	61,778	62,144	62,510
8	58,418	61,048	63,796	64,161	64,527	64,892	65,258
9	61,048	63,796	66,667	67,033	67,398	67,764	68,129
10	63,796	66,667	69,666	70,031	70,397	70,762	71,128
11	66,667	69,666	72,800	73,166	73,531	73,897	74,262
12	69,666	72,800	76,074	76,440	76,805	77,171	77,536
13		76,074	79,496	79,862	80,227	80,592	80,958
14			82,158	82,524	82,889	83,254	83,620
16	71,371	77,780	83,864	84,229	84,594	84,960	85,326
20	73,686	80,095	86,178	86,544	86,909	87,275	87,640
25	76,610	83,018	89,102	89,468	89,833	90,199	90,564

Board shall pay a one time \$1250 stipend to those teachers who are not eligible for a step increase.

Winton Woods City School District Salary Schedule Teachers Effective August 1, 2019

Base \$41,079

Step	Bachelor's	Five-Year	Master's	MA+10	MA+20	MA+30	PhD
0	41,079	42,928	44,858	45,224	45,589	45,955	46,320
1	42,928	44,858	46,879	47,245	47,610	47,976	48,341
2	44,858	46,879	48,987	49,352	49,718	50,083	50,449
3	46,879	48,987	51,193	51,558	51,924	52,289	52,655
4	48,987	51,193	53,497	53,863	54,228	54,594	54,959
5	51,193	53,497	55,904	56,270	56,635	57,001	57,366
6	53,497	55,904	58,418	58,784	59,149	59,515	59,880
7	55,904	58,418	61,048	61,413	61,778	62,144	62,510
8	58,418	61,048	63,796	64,161	64,527	64,892	65,258
9	61,048	63,796	66,667	67,033	67,398	67,764	68,129
10	63,796	66,667	69,666	70,031	70,397	70,762	71,128
11	66,667	69,666	72,800	73,166	73,531	73,897	74,262
12	69,666	72,800	76,074	76,440	76,805	77,171	77,536
13		76,074	79,496	79,862	80,227	80,592	80,958
14			82,158	82,524	82,889	83,254	83,620
16	71,371	77,780	83,864	84,229	84,594	84,960	85,326
20	73,686	80,095	86,178	86,544	86,909	87,275	87,640
25	76,610	83,018	89,102	89,468	89,833	90,199	90,564

Board shall pay a one time \$1250 stipend to those teachers who are not eligible for a step increase

APPENDIX F-1

**Supplemental Positions** 

		Supplemental Positions			Effective August 28, 2018
					Effective August 20, 2010
Group 1:			Group 6:		
	HS	Head Football Coach		HS	Varsity Head Cheer Coach Football
	HS	Band Director		HS	JV Cheer Coach Basketball
	HS	Boys Basketball Head Coach		HS	Volleyball Junior Varsity Coach
	HS	Girls Basketball Head Coach		HS	Volleyball Freshman Coach
	HS	Girls Crew Rowing Coach		HS	Boys Soccer Junior Varsity Coach
		Assistant Athletic Director		HS	Girls Soccer Junior Variety Coach
0				HS	Boys Bowling Head Coach
Group 2:				HS	Girls Bowling Head Coach
				HS	Baseball Varsity Assistant Coach
	HS	Strength Training Coach		HS	Softball Varsity Assistant Coach
Group				HS	Boys Golf Coach
3:	HS	Assistant Varsity Football Coach (4)		HS	Girls Golf Coach
	HS	Boys Basketball Varsity Assistant (2)		HS	Boys Tappis Cooch
	113	Girls Basketball Varsity Assistant		по	Boys Tennis Coach
	HS	(2)		HS	Girls Tennis Coach
	HS	Lacrosse Head Coach		HS	Cross Country Head Coach
	HS	Color Guard Director/Choreographer		HS	Boys Track Junior Varsity Coach
	HS	Assistant Band Director		HS	Girls Track Junior Varsity Coach
	HS	Orchestra (MS)		HS	Head Swimming Coach (MS)
	HS	Choir Director		MS	Head Football Coach 7th
	HS	Spring Musical Director		MS	Head Football Coach 8th
Group				MS	Boys 7 <sup>th</sup> Grade Basketball Coach
4:				MS	Boys 8th Grade Basketball Coach
	HS	Junior Varsity Football Coach (4) Boys Basketball Junior Varsity		MS	Girls 7th Grade Basketball Coach
	HS	Coach		MS	Girls 8th Grade Basketball Coach
	HS	Girls Basketball Junior Varsity Coach		MS	Cross Country Coach Boys & Girls
	HS	Volleyball Head Coach		MS	Boys Head Track Coach
	HS	Boys Soccer Head Coach		MS	Girls Head Track Coach
	HS	Girls Soccer Head Coach		MS	Boys Soccer Coach
	HS	Wrestling Head Coach		MS	Girls Soccer Coach
	HS	Lacrosse Varsity Assistant Coach		MS	Head Wrestling Coach
	HS	Boys Track Head Coach		MS	Volleyball Coach 7 <sup>th</sup>
	HS	Girls Track Head Coach		MS	Volleyball Coach 8th
	HS	Band Associate Band Director		HS	Stage Crew Director Fall
	HS	Choir Assistant Director		MS	Choir Director
	HS	Fall Play Director		HS	Student Council Co-Chair (2)
	HS	Yearbook			
	HS	Auditorium Supervisor			

Group 5:			Group 7:		
	HS	Freshman Football Head		HS	Junior Varsity Cheer Football Freshman Cheer Coach
	HS	Freshman Assistant Football (2)		HS	Basketball
	HS	Girls Basketball Freshman Coach		HS	Baseball Junior Varsity Coach
	HS	Boys Basketball Freshman Coach		HS	Softball Junior Varsity Coach
	HS	Varsity Cheer Coach Basketball Boys Soccer Assistant Varsity		HS	Assistant Swim Coach (MS)
	HS	Coach Girls Soccer Assistant Varsity		HS	Assistant Cross Country Coach
	HS	Coach		MS	Assistant Football Coach 7th
	HS	Wrestling Varsity Assistant Coach		MS	Assistant Football Coach 8th
	HS	Wrestling Junior Varsity Coach		MS	Boys Assistant Track Coach
	HS	Baseball Head Coach		MS	Girls Assistant Track Coach
	HS	Softball Head Coach		MS	Assistant Wrestling Coach
	HS	Lacrosse Junior Varsity Coach Boys Track Varsity Assistant Coach		MS	Baseball Team
	HS	(2) Girls Track Varsity Assistant Coach		MS	Softball Team
	HS	(2) Boys and Girls Track Pole Vault		MS	Cheer Coach 7th Grade Basketball
	HS	Coach		MS	Cheer Coach 8th Grade Basketball
	HS	Stage Director Spring			District Jazz Band
				HS	A-Capella Director (2)
				MS	Production Director
			Group 8:		
				HS	Freshman Cheer Coach Football
				MS	Cheer Coach 7th Grade Football
				MS	Cheer Coach 8th Grade Football
				MS	Band Director
				MS	Musical Choreographer
					Visual Art Co-Director (2)

# Supplemental Salary Schedule Academic (Teaching and Learning Department)

#### Category 1: Special Content Areas - Ten percent (10%) of contracted salary

Must complete five (5) extended days of service

K-12 ESL Coordinator
K-12 Fine Arts Coordinator
K-12 Gifted Coordinator
Academy of Global Studies Coordinator

#### Category 2: Department Head (7-12) - Seven percent (7%) of contracted salary

Must complete five (5) extended days of service

MS English/Language Arts
HS English/Language Arts
MS Social Studies
HS Social Studies
MS Mathematics
MS Special Education
HS Mathematics
HS Special Education
Secondary Global Language
HS Science
Secondary Guidance

# Category 3: Grade Level or Content Area (K-6) – Three percent 3% of contracted salary

Must complete two (2) extended service days.

Kindergarten Math
Grade 3 Mathematics
Grade 1 Math
Grade 4 Mathematics
Grade 2 Math
Grade 5 English Language Arts
Kindergarten Reading
Grade 6 English Language Arts

Grade 1 Reading
Grade 5 Mathematics
Grade 2 Reading
Grade 6 Mathematics
Grade 3 English Language Arts
Grade 4 English Language Arts
IS Special Education
IS Special Education

Winton Woods City School District Salary Schedule Supplemental Duties Effective August 1, 2018

Base \$41,079

# **Supplemental Salary Index**

		Level of Experience				
		1-3	4-6	7-9	10-12	13+
Group	1	22.00%	24.00%	26.00%	28.00%	30.00%
Group	2	13.50%	15.00%	17.50%	19.00%	21.00%
Group	3	11.50%	13.00%	14.50%	16.00%	18.00%
Group	4	9.00%	10.50%	12.00%	13.50%	15.00%
Group	5	8.00%	9.00%	10.00%	11.50%	13.00%
Group	6	5.50%	6.50%	7.50%	8.50%	9.50%
Group	7	5.00%	6.00%	7.00%	8.00%	9.00%
Group	8	3.00%	4.00%	5.00%	6.00%	7.00%
Suppler	nen	tal Salary				
Group	1	9,037	9,859	10,681	11,502	12,324
Group	2	5,546	6,162	7,189	7,805	8,627
Group	3	4,724	5,340	5,956	6,573	7,394
Group	4	3,697	4,313	4,929	5,546	6,162
Group	5	3,286	3,697	4,108	4,724	5,340
Group	6	2,259	2,670	3,081	3,492	3,903
Group	7	2,054	2,465	2,876	3,286	3,697
Group	8	1,232	1,643	2,054	2,465	2,876

Winton Woods City School District Salary Schedule Supplemental Duties Effective August 1, 2019

Base \$41,079

# **Supplemental Salary Index**

	6	Level of Experience				
		1-3	4-6	7-9	10-12	13+
Group	1	22.00%	24.00%	26.00%	28.00%	30.00%
Group	2	13.50%	15.00%	17.50%	19.00%	21.00%
Group	3	11.50%	13.00%	14.50%	16.00%	18.00%
Group	4	9.00%	10.50%	12.00%	13.50%	15.00%
Group	5	8.00%	9.00%	10.00%	11.50%	13.00%
Group	6	5.50%	6.50%	7.50%	8.50%	9.50%
Group	7	5.00%	6.00%	7.00%	8.00%	9.00%
Group	8	3.00%	4.00%	5.00%	6.00%	7.00%
Suppler	nent	tal Salary				
Group	1	9,037	9,859	10,681	11,502	12,324
Group	2	5,546	6,162	7,189	7,805	8,627
Group	3	4,724	5,340	5,956	6,573	7,394
Group	4	3,697	4,313	4,929	5,546	6,162
Group	5	3,286	3,697	4,108	4,724	5,340
Group	6	2,259	2,670	3,081	3,492	3,903
Group	7	2,054	2,465	2,876	3,286	3,697
Group	8	1,232	1,643	2,054	2,465	2,876

APPENDIX G (This form is available online)

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS

#### REQUEST FOR PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

Nome:	REQUEST FOR PROFESSIONAL	LEAVE
Name: Date:	School:	
Event/Activity:		
Location:	Dates: From	Through
Date(s) of Absence from	Dates: FromSub. Required	? YesNo
How does this relate to be	ilding/district goals?	
	OOCUMENTATION OF CONFERENCE DATES, E REGISTRATION FORM WILL USUALLY SUF	
ESTIMATE OF EXPEN	SES: Accurate estimate of all probable expenses is re	equired.
REGISTRATION FEE:		
(Please check.) Some Meals	This includes: Lodging MaterialsFee 0	\$ Only
PREPAYMENT REQUE	STED? PLEASE READ CAREFULLY:	
YES	Only if you wish C.O. to prepay.	
NO	You will pay registration fee and claim reimburs after you have attended the conference.	sement
PREPA	YMENT WILL ONLY BE MADE FOR REGISTR	ATION FEES OF \$35.00 OR MORE.
LODGING:	Single Per N	light\$
TRAVEL:	(Please check.) Car_ (miles at the August AirBusTrain(fare	t 1, I.R.S. Rate)
MEALS:	(Estimate three meals per day @ \$20.00 daily. We will pay actual costs only. Must submit rece	ipts.) \$
MISCELLANEOUS:	(Airport parking, ground transportation while at Meeting, etc.) Specify:	
	3	\$
TOTAL ESTIMATED E	KPENSES:	\$
SUPERVISOR'S APPRO	VAL APPROVED:	
Supervisor	Date Superintendent or Dec	signee Date
Denied for the following	reason:	
		USINESS OFFICE

 $\begin{array}{c} \textit{APPENDIX H} \\ \text{(This form is available online)} \end{array}$ 

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS

#### REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES FOR PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

	Date Submitted:
Name:	
Event:	
Location:	
Dates of Attendance: From	To:
REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTED FOR: (Include, but laborated)	el, all prepaid expenses.)
TRAVEL: MILES AT THE August 1, I.R.S OR other travel	
LODGING: nights at per ni	\$ \$
MEALS:	\$
MISCELLANEOUS: (specify)	
	\$
TOTAL OF ALL EXPENSES:	\$
SUBTRACT TOT OF PREPAID ITEMS:	\$
TOTAL AMOUNT NOW DUE PAYEE:	\$
APPROVED FOR PAYMENT:	SIGNATURES:
	Employee
	Principal
	Superintendent or Designee

APPENDIX I
(This form is available online)

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS

#### PROCEDURE FOR REIMBURSEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

#### Reimbursement Request

- 1.0 Carefully and thoroughly complete the Request for Reimbursement of Expenses for Professional Leave (Form B-12R). Reflect your expenses fairly and accurately.
- 2.0 Attach to Form B-12R itemized bills, statements, or receipts for expenses. Every attempt should be made to obtain a receipt for any expense when a reimbursement is expected. The state auditor requires that expenses for the items below must have documentation for reimbursement.
- 2.1 Travel by airlines, train, and bus.
- 2.2 Ground travel, excluding taxi.
- 2.3 Lodging.
- 2.4 Food.
- 2.5 Registration fees.
- 2.6 Parking.
- 2.7 Tolls (highway and bridges).
- 3.0 Submit the form and receipts to your principal/supervisor within ten (10) days of your return from the approved meeting.
- 4.0 The principal/supervisor will submit them to the Superintendent or designee for approval.
- 5.0 Reimbursement for all properly expended and documented costs will be made to you by check from the Treasurer's Office.
- Reimbursement will only be made for those expenditures given approval on the Request for Professional Leave form. Example: Application for Professional Leave form does not show your request for mileage; however, when completing the request for Reimbursement of Expenses form request for payment of mileage is included. That request and ones similar to this example will not be honored (paid for).

#### Arrangements and Reimbursement Guidelines

- Meals. Twenty Dollars (\$20.00) per day is a planning estimate for meals. This amount is neither an <u>automatic</u> allowance nor an exact limit, and since actual expenses will vary, appropriate allowances will be made. Expenditures for alcoholic beverages and entertainment are not reimbursable. Meals taken in a hotel or motel where you are staying may be charged to your room and included in room statement.
- 2.0 <u>Travel</u>. When traveling by <u>car</u> exact mileage is reimbursable up to the number of miles where the cost is equal to the cost of public transportation. When the reimbursement would exceed the cost of public transportation, only the public transportation costs are allowable. If you travel with a person(s) from another school district(s), the expenses should be shared by the districts. If you travel by <u>plane</u>, it is preferred that you obtain your ticket on your <u>own</u>, perhaps using a deferred billing plan, and include the cost in your claim for reimbursement. If you cannot follow this procedure, your principal/supervisor will determine if the Superintendent will approve other arrangements. Travel by bus or train when appropriate is permitted.
- 3.0 <u>Lodging</u>. If you share a room with another person(s), your hotel or motel statement must accurately reflect <u>your</u> share of the cost.
- 4.0 Other Expenses. Other necessary and reasonable expenses will be reimbursed with proper documentation, if required. Itemized gratuities are not reimbursable as they are not considered to be proper expenditure of public funds.
- 5.0 <u>Registration fees</u>. Reimbursement for the registration fee will be limited to the member registration costs when the meeting is sponsored by the group or organization of the person's major job responsibility. (i.e., An employee who attends a convention will be reimbursed at the rate charged to members of the organization. If the employee is not a member, the employee will be expected to pay the difference between the member and nonmember registration fee.)

APPENDIX J

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS

# APPLICATION FOR ASSAULT LEAVE

Emp	loyee's Name	Date			
Scho	ol Assigned	Submitted			
		Approved		Disappr	oved
		Date	e		
The assau	undersigned says that he/she is hereby making application all leave days is justified for the following reasons:				
1.	Reason for use of leave:				
2.	Was medical attention required?	Yes		No	~~~?
3.	If "yes", please state the name and address of the physicia	an and the dates co	nsulted.		
	Name			_	
	Address				
	Dates Consulted*				
	*Please see 11.1102(B) on back of form.				
4.	Have criminal charges been filed? Yes	s	No		_
5.	I hereby request day(s) of assault leave beginn	ing			
	A.M./P.M.,		, 20		_, and ending
	A.M./P.M.,		, 20		<u>.</u>
		1 <u>1111111111111111111111111111</u>			
		Signature of	employee		

If disapproved, state reasons:

#### 11.11 ASSAULT LEAVE

- 11.1102 Assault leave may not be granted under this policy unless the employee in question:
  - B. Provides a letter from a licensed physician stating the nature and duration of the disability related to the assault and the necessity of absence from regular employment.

APPENDIX K

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS

# REQUEST FOR PAID JURY DUTY AND SUBPOENAED WITNESS DUTY LEAVE

Empl	oyee's Name	Date Submitted	
Schoo	ol Assigned	Approved_	
		Disapprove	d
		Date	
		Ву	
	andersigned says that he/she is hereby making appass per 11.05 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement		naed witness duty leave
1.	Reason for use of leave (please indicate type of	leave):	
2.	I hereby request _day(s) of jury duty and subpo	enaed witness duty leave beginning	
	A.M./P.M.,		, and ending
	A.M./P.M.,		·
Pleaso or day	e note that an employee must return to work while ys of jury duty or witness duty by the court of admit Comments:	on jury duty or witness duty if the employed nistrative agency (see Section 11.05 on back	e is released for any day of form).
	5-1		
		Signature of Employee	
If disa	approved, state reasons:		
-			

#### 11.05 PAID JURY DUTY AND SUBPOENAED WITNESS DUTY LEAVE

11.0501	When an employee must serve on jury duty or is subpoenaed to appear as a witness at a court or public administrative hearing in which the employee is not a party or the subject of the hearing, the employee shall give the Superintendent or designee as much advance written notice of the jury or witness duty as possible, and the employee will be released from duty for each day of required jury duty or witness duty service. An employee must return to work while on jury duty or witness duty if the employee is released from any day or days of jury duty or witness duty by the court or administrative agency.
11.0502	The Board will pay an employee absent from work due to jury or subpoenaed witness duty under Section 11.0501 above. Any compensation or fee provided to the employee by the court, administrative agency or party to the dispute may be retained by the employee to cover incidental expenses of jury or witness service.
11.0503	Employees will be credited with time spent on paid jury duty and subpoenaed witness duty leave for purposes of salary step increases on the salary schedule, seniority or length of service, paid personal business leave, paid sick leave accumulation and Board-paid insurance premium costs.

APPENDIX L Side 1

# WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS

#### LOG OF MEETING TIME OUTSIDE THE WORKDAY (UNCOMPENSATED)

				mic Year l Building	
Use this sheet to maintain a log of all applicable meetings. (A list of qualifying meetings can be found on the back of th form.) Submit the original of this log to your principal or immediate supervisor by March 15 <sup>th</sup> . Submit a second locontaining meetings after March 15 <sup>th</sup> by the last teacher workday.					n be found on the back of the 15 <sup>th</sup> . Submit a second log
Date	Student and/or Purpose	Starting Time	Ending Time	Time Spent	Cumulative Time
•	y that the above is an accurate re	•		Date	
Approv	ved: (Principal or Immedia	ate Supervisor)			

APPENDIX L Side 2

#### Qualifying meetings:

- 1. ETM Evaluation Team Meeting
- 2. 504 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
- 3. IEP Individual Education Program
- 4. Program Review
- 5. RTI-Response t Intervention Team
- 6. CIP Continuous Improvement Plan, including High Schools That Work (limited to 2 hours/month)
- 7. Parent initiated conferences arranged through the school office
- 8. Manifestation Meeting
- 9. Financial Aid Night (Payable only to Counselors)
- 10. Post-Secondary Options Night (Payable only to Counselors)
- 11. College Fair (Payable only to Counselors)
- 12. Fall College Meeting for Seniors (Payable only to Counselors)
- 13. Freshman Orientation (Payable only to Counselors)
- 14. Extra Scheduling Night (Payable only to Counselors)
- 15. Senior Honors Night (Payable only to Counselors)
- 16. Eighth Grade Parent Night (Payable only to Counselors)

APPENDIX M

# WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS <u>TUITION REIMBURSEMENT APPLICATION</u> & COMPLETED COURSEWORK CONFIRMATION

NAME	DATE
I wish	to apply for reimbursement for the following credits:
	University or College:
	Name and Number of Course
	Number of hours: Quarter hrs: Semester hrs:
	Cost per Credit Hour:
	Date of First Class:
	(Tuition Reimbursement Application must be submitted prior to the first date of the class)
-	College Registration Form Attached – including actual cost of tuition
To be d	completed after coursework:
-	College Transcript Attached – must be received by September 1st confirming successful completion of coursework
	For Office Use Only
	Received _ Date Initial

APPENDIX N

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS

#### SALARY SCHEDULE CREDIT VERIFICATION FORM

This form must be acco	mpanied by an official transcript for placement on	the salary schedule.
Name		Date
Salary schedule change	requested:	
	(150 Semester Hours) TERS - 10	MA + 20 MA + 30
The attached document	ation indicates an increase of (indicate number)	
	undergraduate sen	
To date, I have accumu	lated (indicate total number)	
	undergraduate sen	
*To convert quarter Ho	urs to semester hours, divide quarter hours by 1.5.	(Signature of Employee)
10 convoir quarter 110	ars to semester notics, divide quarter notics by 1.5.	•
For Office Use Only		
(Date Received)	(Date Returned)	(Signature)

APPENDIX O

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOLS

#### REQUEST FOR CLASSROOM OBSERVATIONS BY NON-EDUCATIONAL PERSONNEL

Student's Name:	Grade:
School:	
Person Requesting the Observation:	
Relationship to Student:	Phone:
Date of Observation:	Time:
Purpose of Observation:	
Person completing this form:	
	Date:
	Approval of observation:

When a person is in a building owned and/or operated by the Board of Education for any purpose, they will be expected to act and conduct themselves in a courteous fashion. Verbal or physical intimidation will not be permitted. Visitors shall not be allowed to videotape or audiotape students in the classroom as it violates the privacy rights of students unrelated to the visitor.

To maintain the healthy learning environment, which is vital to all students, visitors to the classroom are expected to observe classroom and school rules. The teacher may end the observation if these rules are violated.

Visitors are to be silent observers and should refrain from interacting with the teacher or students during the observation. If the observer wishes to confer with the teacher a conference can be scheduled for a later time, when students are not present. Prior to the scheduling of additional observations a conference will be held with the classroom teacher, the building administrator and the observer to discuss purpose and anticipated outcomes.

Original to building principal. Copy to classroom teacher.

Copy to parent prior to observation along with school district guidelines regarding conduct of visitors to school property.

APPENDIX P

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

#### FACILITY REPORT FORM

This form is <u>not</u> to be used in place of a routine Work Order request. It is intended to provide employees with an avenue for communicating a facility concern in their building, something that could not necessarily be handled through a Work Order, to the Business Office. Complete the form and have your principal or department head/immediate supervisor review and sign before sending directly to the Central Office.

Name:	Building:
Date Submitted:	
Facility Concern:	
<del>a</del>	
Principal or Department Head Signature:	Date:

APPENDIX Q Side 1

#### **CONTINUING CONTRACT APPLICATION**

Name		Build	Building Assignment	
Years in District		Total	Years of Experience	
Type of Certificate/Licens	se currently held			
Please circle appropriate l	evel of educatio	n;		
	Masters	MA+10	MA+20	MA+30
Did you have continuing of	contract status ir	your previous en	nployment?	

# **ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS**

Winton Woods City Schools requires that four formal observations be conducted in any year the employee will be considered for a continuing contract.

The requirements of the Ohio Revised code are printed on the back of this form.

APPENDIX Q Side 2

#### **OHIO REVISED CODE**

§ 3319.08 Teacher employment and re-employment contracts.

- (D) A continuing contract is a contract that remains in effect until the teacher resigns, elects to retire, or is retired pursuant to former section 3307.37 of the Revised Code, or until it is terminated or suspended and shall be granted only to the following:
  - (1) Any teacher holding a professional, permanent, or life teacher's certificate;
  - (2) Any teacher who meets the following conditions:
    - (b) The teacher was initially issued a teacher's certificate or educator license prior to January 1, 2011.
    - (c) The teacher holds a professional educator license issued under section 3319.22 or 3319.222 or former section 3319.22 of the Revised Code or a senior professional educator license or lead professional educator license issued under section 3319.22 of the Revised Code.
    - (d) The teacher has completed the applicable one of the following:
      - (i) If the teacher did not hold a master's degree at the time of initially receiving a teacher's certificate under former law or an educator license, thirty semester hours of coursework in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of such certificate or license, as specified in rules which the state board of education shall adopt;
      - (ii) If the teacher held a master's degree at the time of initially receiving a teacher's certificate under former law or an educator license, six semester hours of graduate coursework in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of such certificate or license, as specified in rules which the state board of education as shall adopt.
  - (3) Any teacher who meets the following conditions:
    - (a) The teacher never held a teacher's certificate and was initially issued an educator license on or after January 1, 2011.
    - (b) The teacher holds a professional educator license, senior professional educator license, or lead professional educator license issued under section 3319.22 of the Revised Code.
    - (c) The teacher has held an educator license for at least seven years.
    - (d) The teacher has completed the applicable one of the following:
      - (i) If the teacher did not hold a master's degree at the time of initially receiving an educator license, thirty semester hours of coursework in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of that license, as specified in rules which the state board of education shall adopt;
      - (ii) If the teacher held a master's degree at the time of initially receiving an educator license, six semester hours of graduate coursework in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of that license, as specified in rules which the state board shall adopt.
- (E) Division (D) of this section applies only to continuing contracts entered into on or after the effective date of this amendment. Nothing in that division shall be construed to void or otherwise affect a continuing contract entered into prior to that date.
  - Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in Chapter 4117 of the Revised Code, the requirements of division (D)(3) of this section prevail over any conflicting provisions of a collective bargaining agreement entered into on or after the effective date of this amendment.
- (F) Wherever the term "educator license" is used in this section without reference to a specific type of educator license, the term does not include an educator license for substitute teaching issued under section 3310.226 of the Revised Code.

APPENDIX R

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

#### **BUILDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE CONCERN FORM**

Contract	Lan	guage:

Article VI, Section 6.0303

"The building advisory committees are intended to be advisory only and are intended to assist the administrators and the school staff, through the process of open discussion, to address needs and concerns. The committees shall assume the responsibility for being knowledgeable about matters which relate to their function. The building advisory committees shall not deal with issues that either Association members or administrators believe are grievance matters, nor shall the committees have the authority to alter the Collective Bargaining Agreement. Committee meetings are not intended to replace informal communication between employees or Association representatives and their building administrators. WWTA may, after investigation and review of a particular matter, present summarized information for discussion without identifying the individuals(s) who brought the issue forward. In the event the administrator finds that he or she cannot effectively address the concern(s) without additional information, including the source of the concerns(s), WWTA will provide such information upon request or withdraw the issue. WWTA may thereafter submit the matter to the Superintendent for review and consideration.

<u>Employees:</u> Please complete the following form so that we can more accurately address your concern. The form is to be seen by the Association committee members only and will not be individually shared with the building principal.

300	to y the 13300 tation committee members only and with not be marviatally shared with the building principal.
1.	What is your building concern?
2.	How do you feel it affects the staff or students?
3.	What have you done, if anything, to address this concern on your own, prior to bringing it to the attention of the committee?
Sig	nature Date
Co	mmittee disposition checklist:
	building issue — placed on the agenda building issue — returned to the individual for clarification non-building issue — returned to the individual with personal explanation

APPENDIX S

#### WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

# SUPPLEMENTAL POSITION RE-EVALUATION REQUEST FORM

I. To be Completed by Applicant:	
I hereby request re-evaluation of the follow	ving supplemental position:
Position	
Present Salary Group	Requested Salary Group
comparable job description for Fort And	ecompanied by data such as: salary comparisons, including cient Valley Conference and Hamilton County Schools of supervised, number of coaches currently employed, additions que circumstances specific to the request)
Date	Signature of Employee
II. To be Completed by Athletic Director,	Fine Arts Facilitator, or Immediate Supervisor:
Comments on the Request:	
<u> </u>	
Date	Signature of Athletic Director, Fine Arts Facilitator Or Immediate Supervisor

# WINTON WOODS TEACHERS' ASSOCIATION AND WINTON WOODS BOARD OF EDUCATION COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT: EFFECTIVE JUNE 29, 2018 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2020

III.	To be Completed by the Sup	pplemental Review Team:
IV.	Recommend Approval	Disapproval
Date		Signature of Chairperson

APPENDIX T

## WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

#### Contract Year

#### ANNUAL EMPLOYEE INTERVIEW RECORD

CERTIFICATED STAFF MEMBER'S NAME:	NAME
Present School - SCHOOL	Present Assignment – ASSIGNMENT
PREFERENCES FOR NEXT SCHOOL YEAR: ( wish to return to same school/assignment desire building change (will complete Profe will request assignment change (i.e. grade l will request job change (i.e. teacher to cour Survey form) leaving (if retiring, letter of intent must be s will request leave of absence (child care, sal	essional Interest Survey form) evel, course subject, etc.) uselor, counselor to administrator, etc.) (will complete Professional Interest submitted prior to April 1st)
PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE (BASE Training – Winton Woods Salary Step – Salary –	
	ining — where change in salary is anticipated — must be submitted with a nent to the personnel office no later than September 1 <sup>st</sup> .
CONTRACT STATUS: Is on a contract expiring (NOTE: If you are on a continuing contract, no ex	piration date will be listed.)
CERTIFICATION STATUS: (Please review care Grade: expiring (NOTE: If you have a permanent certificate, no experiment certificate,	•
STAFF EVALUATION & DEVELOPMENT PLA	<u>CEMENT FOR 200200_</u> :
Woods City School District Board of Education a	
Staff Member's Signature	Interviewer's Signature
DATE OF INTERVIEW:	TIME:
SPECIAL NOTES, IF ANY:	
Principals/Supervisors: This form must be returned	ed to the office of the Executive Director of Human Resources by

APPENDIX U

## WINTON WOODS CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

## CLASSROOM PREPARATION HOURS LOG

NAME							Position			
Social Secur	rity#						Building			
*Fill in the YEAR along CP – Classro	g with the	reason for	ny extra time work the time.	ted PRIOR 7	TO AND IN I	PREPARA	TION FO	R THE ST	CART OF TH	IE SCHOOL
	Date	Hours	Reason	Date	Hours	Reaso	n	Date	Hours	Reason
Sunday										
Monday										
Tuesday										
Wednesday										
Thursday										
Friday										
Saturday										
				Total hour	rs submitted		Employe	e Signatur	re	
Due to the P	rincipal b	by Septembe	er 1.					or Signatu		



# SIX BELL COMPLAINT FORM GRADES 7-12

APPENDIX V

#### **Section 10.0317**

leacher's Name:	
School:	
Grade Level and Class	
Number of Teaching Bells	
Number of Preps	
Total Class Load	
Class size per bell	
1 2 3 4	5 6 7 8
Type of Class (e.g., Regular Ed, Inclusion, S	ubstantially Separate Special Ed,
ESL, etc.) :s there a paraprofessional? Yes:	No:
Date Presented to Principal:	
Meeting Date(s):	
Summary of Administrative Response:	
Proposed Remedy:	
Signature	Date:



# Student Growth Measure ("SGM") Error Form

APPENDIX W

#### **Section 8.0104**

reacner:		
Building:	<del></del>	
Grade Level:		
Subject:Attach SLO:	<del></del>	
Briefly describe concern(s) about SGM:		
Proposed		
Remedy:		
Nomody		
Ci	Data	
Signature:	Date:	



# Anthem 100 Medical Plans: Anthem

	PPO Plan Single/Family (In-network)	HDHP with HSA Plan Single/Family (In-network)
NETWORK NAME	Blue Access PPO	Lumenos HSA
Deductible	\$500/\$1,000	\$2,700/\$5,000
Coinsurance	80/20	100/0
Maximum Out-of-Pocket (includes copays, coinsurance, and deductible)	\$3,500/\$7,000	\$2,700/\$5,000
Office Visit Copays Primary or Specialist	\$20/\$30	Deductible, then 100%
Emergency Room	\$100 copay	Deductible, then 100%
Urgent Care	\$50 copay	Deductible, then 100%
Preventive	Covered in full	Covered in full
Retail Drug	\$10/\$25/\$40	Deductible, then 100%
Mail Order Drug	\$10/\$65/\$120	Deductible, then 100%